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The main areas of focus of the 
EWSETA is electricity, renewable 
energy, oil and gas and water 
services, as determined by the 
Honourable Minister of Higher 
Education and Training in terms 
of section 9(2) of the SDA, read in 
conjunction with Government Gazette 
No 33756, RG 9417, No. R1055 of 
11 November 2010.

The Energy and Water Sector Education 
and Training Authority (EWSETA) is a 

skills development authority serving the 
energy and water services sector. It is 

one of 21 Sector Education and Training 
Authorities (SETAs) established in South 
Africa in terms of the Skills Development 

Act of 1998 - amended. It plays a 
crucial function in ensuring that the 

National Skills Development Strategy is 
executed within the energy and water 

services sector. 
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“Sector Education and Training Authorities 
(SETAs) have been brought closer 
to colleges and universities and are 
working to build partnerships between 
themselves, educational institutions and 
employers. We have also been investing 
in the establishment of a skills planning 
mechanism that will ensure that we are 
able to predict the demand for skills and 
adjust our supply pipeline to deal with 
these demands.”

Dr Blade Nzimande,
Minister of Higher Education and Training, Budget Vote 2014

Presentation of the EWSETA Annual 
Report 2014/2015 to the Minister of 
Higher Education and Training

In terms of Section 65 of the Public Finance Management 
Act, 1 of 1999, I have the honour of presenting the Annual 
Report of the Energy and Water Sector Education and 
Training Authority (EWSETA), for the period 1 April 2014 to 
31 March 2015, to the Minister of Higher Education and 
Training, Dr Blade Nzimande.

Mr Olebogeng Besnaar
Accounting Authority Chairperson (Interim)
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 
(EWSETA)
August 2015

Presentation of the 
EWSETA Annual Report
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General Information

Registered name Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority (EWSETA)
Street address Sentinel House (2nd and 3rd Floors), Sunnyside Office Park, 32 Princess of Wales Terrace, 

Parktown, Houghton, 2198
Postal address P O Box 5983, Johannesburg 2000
Telephone 011 274 4700
Fax 011 484 8953 / 011 484 1078
Email info@eseta.org.za
Website www.ewseta.org.za
RP
ISBN

RP 181/2015
978-0-621-43729-4

External auditors Auditor-General of South Africa
Bankers First National Bank, Rand Merchant Bank, Standard Bank
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Abbreviations/Acronyms

AQP Assessment Quality Provider

ATR Annual Training Report

BBBEE Broad-Based Black Economic 
Empowerment

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

COO Chief Operational Officer

CSE Corporate Services Executive

DG Discretionary Grant

DHET Department of Higher Education and Training

DQP Development Quality Partner

DWS Department of Water and Sanitation

ETQA Education and Training Quality Assurance

HEI Higher Education Institution

HET Higher Education and Training

IDC Independent Development Corporation

LMIS Labour Market Information System

MEC Member of Executive Council

MoU Memorandum of Understanding

MIS Management Information System

MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure Framework

NAMB National Artisan Moderation Body

NGP New Growth Path

NLRD National Learners’ Records Database

NSDS National Skills Development Strategy

OFO Organising Framework for Occupations

PIVOTAL Professional, Vocational, Technical and 
Academic Learning

PFMA Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999

PSET Post-School Education and Training

QAC Quality Assurance and Compliance

QACC Quality Assurance and Compliance 
Committee

QCTO Quality Council for Trades and Occupations

QDF Quality Development Facilitator

QMS Quality Management System

RECE Renewable Energy Centre of Excellence

SANACO South African National Apex Cooperatives

SAQA South African Qualifications Authority

SBIDZ Saldanha Bay Industrial Development Zone

SCM Supply Chain Management

SDA Skills Development Act 97 of 1998 (as 
amended)

SDL Skill Development Levy

SETA Sector Education and Training Authority

SLA Service Level Agreement 

SMME Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise 

SOP Standard Operating Procedures

SQMR SETA Quality Management Report

SSP Sector Skills Plan

TR Treasury Regulations

TVET Technical and Vocational Education and 
Training
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Vision, Mission and Values

Our Vision

• We will be the recognised, reputable Authority in skills development facilitation for the energy and water services sector.

Our Mission

•  Comprehensively researching and understanding the skills demand and supply forces in our sector.
•  Co-ordinating, facilitating and quality assuring sector-relevant skills development programmes for our stakeholders, as 

aligned with stated national skills development priorities.
•  Generating, articulating and executing a sector skills pipeline with a positive impact on the government’s economic growth 

policies, employment creation and poverty eradication.

Our Values

We entrench an organisational culture that is conducive to the following values:

• Visionary leadership
 Keeping the EWSETA’s vision, mandate and values at the forefront of associated decision-making and action.

• Stakeholder orientation
  Cultivating strategic stakeholder relationships and ensuring that stakeholder perspectives are the driving force behind all 

value-added organisational activities.

• Continuous learning and research
  Actively identifying new areas for organisational learning and positioning; regularly creating and taking advantage of learning 

opportunities; using newly-gained knowledge to drive organisational and personal performance and delivery.

• Driving for results
  Setting high goals for personal and group accomplishment; measuring and monitoring progress towards goal attainment; 

meeting or exceeding those goals with tenacity; and deriving satisfaction from goal achievement and continuous 
improvement.

• Building collaborative working relationships
  Developing and using collaborative relationships to accomplish business goals.

• Quality orientation
  Accomplishing objectives and tasks holistically; being aware of all activities and engagements; establishing and controlling 

processes and systems accurately; and being continuously watchful.

• Demonstrating personal integrity
 Interacting with others in a way that inspires confidence in the intentions of EWSETA staff and the organisation.
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In line with the National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS) III, the EWSETA adopted a set of strategic outcome-orientated 
goals for the 2014/2015 financial period as indicated in the table below.

Goal Goal statement Technical indicators
Strengthen institutional 
capabilities to meet the skills 
development needs of the 
energy and water services 
sector

Establish a governance and management system 
within the EWSETA to manage all resources 
appropriately and ensure sustainable and reliable 
organisational performance and compliance.

•   The opinion of the Auditor-General
•   Internal audit results
•   The achievement of strategic targets.

Establish and continuously 
improve a credible, 
institutional skills planning 
mechanism 

Research, document and communicate sector skills 
development needs for effective planning across the 
energy and water services sector. In particular: 
•   Research Sector Skills Plan (SSP) professionally 

for a sound analysis of the sector and articulate an 
agreed sector strategy to address skills needs 

•   ��Analyse, validate and capture sector-
commissioned research in an integrated database 
accessible to stakeholders.

•   The opinion of the Auditor-General
•   The accuracy, accessibility, coverage and 

timeliness of the SSP
•   The accuracy, accessibility, coverage and 

timeliness of research.

Increase access  to 
occupation-directed 
programmes

Implement strategies and projects to identify and 
address middle-level and artisan skills in the energy 
and water services sector by partnering specifically 
with TVET colleges, universities of technology and 
employers who provide workplace-based training.

Address national, high-level scarce skills needs 
with work-ready graduates from higher education 
institutions to ensure that:
•� ��The SSP identifies the gaps in the supply of 

high-level scarce skills and sets out strategies to 
address them.

•� ��EWSETA partners with university faculties and 
other stakeholders in appropriate interventions to 
provide students with improved entry into priority 
programmes and increased work experience, 
experiential learning and post-graduate work 
opportunities. 

Establish relevant research, development and 
innovation capacity and innovative research projects.

•   Number of projects established in the 
sector to train, qualify and make artisans 
work-ready

•   Annual number of graduate artisans 
•   Accuracy of the quantification of the high-

level skills gaps
•   Achievement of strategy targets relating to 

improved supply of high-level scarce skills
•   Number of agreements entered into 

between the EWSETA and relevant 
stakeholders

•   Number of learners enrolling in or being 
certified through the agreements

•   Number of agreements between the 
EWSETA and key stakeholders on 
flagship research projects linked to sector 
development

•   Number of students enrolled/certified 
through programmes that focus on the 
skills needed to produce relevant research 
with an impact on achieving economic 
and skills development goals.

Promote the growth of a 
public TVET College system 
that is responsive to sector, 
local, regional and national 
skills needs and priorities

Establish partnerships with employers, private 
providers and public TVET Colleges that result in 
increased capacity to meet industry needs in the 
energy and water services sector.

•   Number of partnerships with TVET 
Colleges.

•   Number of students enrolled/certified in 
vocational courses and work experience 
as a result of the partnership

•   Number of college lecturers participating 
in work placement opportunities facilitated 
through the EWSETA partnership.

Strategic Outcome-orientated Goals
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Goal Goal statement Technical indicators
Address the low level of 
youth and adult language 
and numeracy skills to enable 
additional training

Drive the implementation of a strategy to provide all 
young people leaving school with an opportunity to 
engage in training or work experience, and improve 
their employability.

•   Number of programmes established to 
provide young people leaving school 
with an opportunity to improve language 
and numeracy and engage in training 
or work experience, and improve their 
employability

•   Number of young people participating in 
the above programmes

•   Accuracy, currency and 
comprehensiveness of a sector database 
to track training and work opportunities, 
and report on implementation of the 
strategy

•   Accuracy and timeliness of reporting.
Encourage better use of 
workplace-based skills 
development

Facilitate training of employed workers that addresses 
critical skills, thereby enabling improved productivity, 
economic growth and the ability of the work force to 
adapt to change in the labour market.  In particular to 
ensure:
•   ��EWSETA stakeholders agree on the provision 

of substantial quality programmes for employed 
workers and report on the impact of the training.

•   ��Sector projects are put in place to address 
specific sector skills gaps. 

•   ��Cross-sectoral projects are established 
to address skills needs along local supply 
chains aimed at supporting local economic 
development.

•   Number of workplace-based skills 
programmes

•   Number of students participating in 
workplace-based skills programmes

•   Number of specific sector skills projects
•   Number of people participating in specific 

projects
•   Number of cross-sectoral projects
•   Number of people participating in cross-

sectoral projects

Encourage and support 
cooperatives, small 
enterprises, worker-initiated, 
NGO and community training 
initiatives

Support cooperatives with skills training and 
development.  In particular, that:
•   ��the EWSETA identifies in its skills planning 

research, established and emergent cooperatives 
and their skills needs.

•   ��sector projects are established by sector 
stakeholders, supported by the NSF

•   ��a national database of cooperatives supported 
with skills development is established and the 
impact of training reported on.

Establish partnership projects to provide training 
and development support to small businesses in the 
sector and report on their impact.  In particular that:  
•   ��The EWSETA, through its skills planning research, 

identifies the skills needs of small and emerging 
businesses in the sector, and promotes relevant 
programmes.

•   Sector projects are developed that are piloted by 
the EWSETA and expanded through partnership 
funding.

•   ��A national database of small businesses 
supported with skills development is established 
and the impact of training reported on.

Support worker, NGO and community-based 
education programmes and report on and measure 
their impact.  In particular that:
•   The EWSETA engages with trade unions, NGOs 

and community-based organisations in its sectors 
and identifies skills needs and strategies to 
address needs.

•   ��The EWSETA establishes quality pilot projects and 
expands successful projects with support from 
the NSF.

•   Number of cooperative projects 
•   Number of students participating in 

cooperative projects
•   Accuracy, currency and 

comprehensiveness of a sector 
cooperatives database

•   Accuracy and timeliness of reporting 
•   Number of partnership projects with small 

and emerging business
•   Number of students participating in 

partnership projects
•   Accuracy, currency and 

comprehensiveness of a sector-wide small 
business database

•   Accuracy and timeliness of reporting 
•   Number of worker, NGO and community-

based projects established
•   Number of students participating in 

projects.
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Goal Goal statement Technical indicators
Build career and vocational 
guidance

Map and effectively communicate career paths to 
qualifications in the energy and water services sector 
and sub-sectors, contributing to improved relevance 
of training and greater mobility and progression.  In 
particular, that:
•   ��Career guides are developed with labour market 

information that addresses the sector and sub-
sectors.

•   ����Sector stakeholders are engaged and 
programmes adjusted to meet their skills and 
qualification needs and promote comprehensive 
career development.

•   Accuracy and coverage of career guides
•   Number of potential learners accessing 

career guides and career guidance 
offered.

Refocus the EWSETA on 
technologies and skills, which 
support green growth and 
sustainability

Research and engage with sector partners and 
stakeholders to identify, develop and introduce 
new programmes that focus on green growth and 
sustainability in the energy and water services sector.

•   ��  Number of green/ sustainability 
programmes/ modules introduced

•   Number of students enrolled in 
programmes/modules

•   Number of students certified in 
programmes/modules.

Promote access to training 
and skills development 
to solve inequity linked to 
class, race, gender, age, 
geographical 
location, HIV/AIDS and 
disability in our society

Research and engage with sector partners and 
stakeholders to identify, develop and introduce new 
programmes that focus on addressing or solving 
social inequities in the energy and water services 
sector.

•   Number of equality programmes or 
modules introduced

•   Number of students enrolled in 
programmes/modules

•   Number of students certified in 
programmes/modules.
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These performance highlights and achievements represent 
a selection of projects and initiatives during the 2014/2015 
financial year that reflect the EWSETA’s role and impact in 
key performance areas.

• The acquisition of our own building after the Accounting 
Authority decision in November 2012 to purchase 
a building as escalating office rental had become a 
major expenditure. The purchase of the building was 
approved in August 2014 and we hope to occupy the 
new building by August/September 2015.

• The launch of a Free State Province pilot project in 
which the EWSETA facilitated the training of 553 water 
process controllers to service municipalities in the 
province.

• The first successful EWSETA Skills Summit was held 
in Saldanha Bay in March 2015 for the Saldanha 
Bay and greater West Coast community as part 
of a major government initiative in partnership with 
the Department of Trade and Industry (dti). The 
initiative enables the EWSETA to partner with other 
government departments, private sector and other key 
stakeholders in implementing relevant and impactful 
training programmes that respond directly to the skills 
and development needs of this SBIDZ. 

• The EWSETA engaged more robustly with stakeholders 
in the energy sub-sector of oil and gas. Engagements 
with local and international stakeholders resulted in 
a number of collaboration agreements with, among 
others, the South African Oil and Gas Alliance 
(SAOGA), and leading international partners such as 
the Association of Dutch Suppliers in the Oil and Gas 
Industry (IRO).

• The launch of a Renewable Energy  Centre of 
Excellence (RECE) in August 2014 to respond to 
industry’s renewable energy skills needs generally and 
the solar (PV and CSP) energy skills needs specifically. 
The Department of Energy allocated most of the solar 
energy projects to the Northern Cape, while the Centre 
of Excellence is located in the Special Economic Zone 
(Solar Corridor) as announced by dti Minister Rob 
Davies.

• Full migration to an electronic record management 
system which has improved performance reporting 
substantially.

Performance Highlights

• The EWSETA’s certification process improved greatly 
compared to previous years due to the successful 
implementation of a new Management Information 
System with a more effective and efficient process. 
As a result, turnaround times decreased significantly 
during the reporting period.

• The Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) outlines South 
Africa’s vision for a sustainable energy mix with 
renewable energy and nuclear as key sources of 
energy in this regard. The EWSETA signed a MoU with 
the International Institute of Nuclear Energy (12EN), 
a French state-owned research entity with scientific, 
technical and industrial activity in the nuclear sector to 
support the country’s delivery against the IRP. 
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The Energy and Water Sector Education and Training 
Authority (EWSETA) is one of 21 SETA’s established in 
terms of Section 9 of the Skills Development Act, 97 of 
1998, as amended and reports to the Honourable Minister 
of the Department of Higher Education & Training. 

Our mandate is to anticipate, build and manage the skills 
development and training needs of the energy and water 
services sector through strategic skills planning within 
the context of the National Skills Development Strategy 
(NSDS III).

How do we do this?

By establishing and registering learning programmes, 
approving Workplace Skills Plans (WSPs) and Annual 
Training Reports (ATRs), disbursement of mandatory 
grants to levy-paying employers and discretionary grants 
to stakeholders including skills development providers, 
public education and training institutions, learners, non-
Governmental organisations (NGOs), community-based 
organisations (CBOs), cooperatives and worker- initiated 
programmes.

It is critical to note that the EWSETA will allocate 80% of 
its Discretionary Grant funds to PIVOTAL programmes. 
These are professional, vocational, technical and academic 
learning programmes linked to occupationally-directed 
qualifications and include programmes such as bursaries, 
apprenticeships, internships, graduate placements, 
learnerships and other selected skills programmes.

In addition, the EWSETA monitors the quality assurance 
in education and training in the energy and water services 
sector and promotes and facilitates energy and water 
services learnerships, internships, apprenticeships and 
other learning programmes.

The sub-sectors we service include electricity, oil and gas, 
nuclear, renewable energy and water, waste and sanitation.

EWSETA Profile

Our strategy

The NSDS III ensures that our strategy is aligned with key 
national development strategies and macroeconomic policies, 
such as:
• The National Development Plan (with a focus on Operation 

Phakisa).
• The Human Resource Development Strategy of South 

Africa.
• New Growth Path.
• Industrial Policy Action Plan II.
• National Infrastructure Plan (of which the 18 Strategic 

Integrated Projects (SIPS) are an integral part).
• National Skills Accord.
• National Youth Accord.

Our goals 

• Strengthen institutional capabilities to meet the skills 
development needs of the energy and water services 
sector.

• Establish and continuously improve a credible institutional 
mechanism for skills planning.

• Increase access to occupationally-directed programmes.
• Promote the growth of a public TVET College system that 

is responsive to sector, local, regional and national skills 
needs and priorities.

• Address the low level of youth and adult language and 
numeracy skills to facilitate additional training.

• Encourage better use of workplace-based skills 
development.

• Encourage and support cooperatives, small enterprises, 
worker-initiated, NGO and community training initiatives.

• Build career and vocational guidance.
• Refocus the EWSETA on facilitating the development of 

technologies and skills that support green growth and 
sustainability.

• Promote access to training and skills development aimed 
at solving inequities linked to class, race, gender, age, 
geographical location, HIV/AIDS and disability.
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Legislative and other Mandates

Constitutional mandate

The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa forms the 
basis of an education system that is based on the values of 
human dignity, equality, human rights, freedom, non-racism 
and non-sexism and guarantees a basic education to all.

Legislative mandates

The Acts and associated regulations listed below direct the 
strategic and operational functionality of the EWSETA.

National legislation and regulations

• South African Qualifications Authority Act, 58 of 1995: 
Forms the foundation for a national learning system 
that integrates education and training at all levels.

• Further Education and Training Act, 16 of 1998: 
Provides the basis for the development of nationally-
coordinated further education and training.

• General and Further Education and Training Quality 
Assurance Act, 58 of 2001: Guides the development of 
norms and standards for curricula and assessments.

• Public Finance Management Act, 1 of 1999 and 
Treasury Regulations, 2005: Promotes the objective 
of good financial management to maximise service 
delivery.

• The Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 
5 of 2000 and Preferential Procurement Regulations, 
2011: Guides procurement in government where a 
preference point system must be followed.

• National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS III): 
Defines the national skills development framework and 
targets against which all SETAs must deliver.

• Skills Development Act, 97 of 1998: Forms the basis of 
the existence and operating mandate of all the SETAs.

• Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998: Provides 
a framework for implementing affirmative action 
and protects workers and job seekers from  unfair 
discrimination.

• Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 75 of 1997: 
Forms the basis of all employment relationships and 
guides learnership agreements and internal EWSETA 
employee relations.

• Labour Relations Act, 66 of 1995: Governs both 
internal employee/employer relationships and external 
learner/employer relationships.

• The Division of Revenue Act, 38 of 2014 (enacted 
annually): Defines the budgetary allocations for 
governmental organisations.

• King III, 2009: Informs the functioning of the Accounting 
Authority and its sub-committees.

• Quality Council for Trades and Occupations (QCTO) 
gazetted in the Government Gazette No 33059, 1 April 
2010: Oversees the quality of curriculum development, 
accreditation of qualifications and assessment.

• The Medium-Term Strategic Framework (MTSF): 
Designed to guide governmental policy and the 
programme of action over the next five years.

• The Human Resource Development Strategy for 
South Africa, 2009: Promotes the maximisation of the 
potential of the people of South Africa, through the 
acquisition of knowledge and skills.

• New Growth Path (NGP), 2010: Provides bold, 
imaginative and effective strategies to create the 
millions of new jobs South Africa needs.

• Green Economy Accord, 2011: Aims to create 300 000 
jobs by 2020 in the Green Economy. 

• National Development Plan (NDP), 2013: Aims to 
eliminate poverty and reduce inequality by 2030.

Sector-specific Regulatory Framework

In addition to the national legislation above, the following 
sector regulations directly influence and inform the focus of 
the EWSETA’s operations:
• The Strategic Framework for Water Services, 2003: 

Sets out a comprehensive approach for the provision 
of water services.

• The National Water Resource Strategy (NWRS), 2012: 
Provides a framework for the use, development, 
conservation, management and control of water 
resources.

• Industrial Policy Action Plan (IPAP 2), 2010/11 – 
2012/13: Details key actions and time-frames for the 
implementation of industrial policy.

• Water Services Amendment Act, 30 of 2004: Directs 
the right of access to basic water supply and basic 
sanitation and setting national standards and tariffs.
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• National Water Act, 36 of 1998: Acknowledges the 
National Government’s overall responsibility for and 
authority over the nation’s water resources and their 
use.

• Municipal Structures Act, 117 of 1998: Directs the 
establishment of municipalities.

• The Municipal Systems Act, 32 of 2000: Sets the core 
principles, mechanisms and processes required for 
municipalities to socially and economically uplift local 
communities.

• Municipal Finance Management Act, 56 of 2003: 
Promotes the objective of good financial management 
to maximise service delivery.

• Nuclear Energy Act, 46 of 1999: Directs the 
establishment of the South African Nuclear Energy 
Corporation Limited.

• National Nuclear Regulator (NNR) Act, 47 of 1999: 
Directs the establishment of safety standards and 
regulatory practices to protect persons, property and 
the environment against nuclear damage.

• National Energy Act, 34 of 2008: Promotes the 
availability of diverse energy resources in sustainable 
quantities and at affordable prices.
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Organisational Structure

* Phased introduction
** Numbers dependent on active projects

*** Phased introduction and numbers dependent on active projects

Chief Executive Officer

Sectoral Collaboration & 
Stakeholder Engagement 

Executive

Personal Assistant Personal Assistant

Chief Operations Officer Corporate Services Executive Chief Financial Officer

Executive AssistantStrategic Support Manager & 
Board Secretary

Administrator: 
Corporate Governance

Administrator: 
Strategic Support

Energy Sector 
Cluster 

Manager

Skills 
Development 
& Planning 
Manager

Facilities & 
Information 
Manager

Quality 
Assurance & 
Compliance 

Manager

Planning 
Administrator *

Compliance 
Administrator *

Strategic 
Planning 

Practitioner

QA & 
Compliance 

Practitioner X 3

Monitoring 
& Evaluation 

Practitioner X 2

M&E 
Administrator *

Supply Chain 
Manager

Sector Skills 
Planning 

Practitioner
Supply Chain 
Administrator

Researcher Records 
Administrator

Travel 
Coordinator

SSP 
Administrator *

Fixed Assets 
Controller

Research 
Administrator * IT Technician

Supply Chain 
Practitioner 

(incl Contracts 
Management)

Gas, Oil 
& Nuclear 
Specialist

Renewable 
Energy 

Specialist

Gas, Oil & 
Nuclear 

Administrator

Electricity 
Administrator

Renewable 
Energy 

Administrator

Water Sector 
Cluster 

Manager

Regional 
Operations 
Manager

Human 
Resource 
Manager

Skills Delivery 
Manager

Artisan 
Development 
Administrator

Artisan 
Development 
Practitioner

Reporting, Risk 
& Compliance 

Manager

Marketing & 
Communication 

Manager

Project Manager

Project 
Coordinator: 
Portfolio ***

Project 
Coordinator **

Financial 
Accounting 
Manager

Sanitation 
Specialist

Career Cen-
tre & Work 
Placement 

Administrator *

Talent 
Management 

& Development 
Practitioner

Call Centre 
Team Leader

Grant 
Administrator

Regional 
Operations 

Administrator
HR 

Administrator
Risk & 

Reporting 
Officer

Marketing 
Practitioner

Financial 
Controller

Administration 
Clerk X 9 *

Call Centre 
Operator X 2

Payroll & 
Petty Cash 

Administrator

Regional 
Operations 
Coordinator 

X 9

Resourcing 
Practitioner

Projects 
Financial 
Controller

Communi-
cation 

Practitioner
Financial 
Controller

Waste 
Specialist

Sanitation 
Administrator

Water 
Administrator

Waste 
Administrator

Electricity 
Specialist

Water 
Resource 
Specialist
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The EWSETA Accounting Authority

BAdmin (Hons), University of Pretoria. Advanced Diploma in Labour Law, Rand Afrikaans University (now University 
of Johannesburg). Presidential Leadership Programme, South African Management Development Institute (SAMDI)/
University of the North West Executive Development Programme, Wits Business School.
Areas of specialisation: All aspects of human resource management with a focus on skills development and labour 
relations.

MBA, Management College of Southern Africa (MANCOSA), Durban. Human Resource Management
Diploma, Allenby College, Johannesburg.
Leadership roles: Board member, Denel Centre for Learning and Development; Manufacturing, Engineering and 
Related Services Sector Education and Training Authority (MERSETA) Accelerated Artisan Training Programme 
Steering Committee member; DHET Artisan Development Coordinating Committee member; Technical Skills 
Business Partnership and FET (now TVET) College Industry Partnership Task Team member.

BSc (Engineering), University of Natal; BSc (Chemistry & Mathematics), University of Transkei, Postgraduate 
Diploma in Business Management, Graduate School of Business, University of Natal. Executive Management 
and Leadership Development Programmes, University of Stellenbosch and University of Pretoria respectively 
and Certificates in Management Studies, Project Management, Construction Management and Management 
Development for Municipal Finance at various HEIs.
Leadership roles: Provincial Executive Committee member, ILGM, Eastern Cape; Municipal Manager, Chris Hani 
District Municipality and leadership roles at Alfred Nzo District Municipality and Wild CoastDistrict Council.

Healthcare Benefit Administration Certificate, Discovery Institute. BSc Computer Science 2nd year, Programme in 
Public Administration Management (UNISA) current.
Leadership roles: More than 10 years in youth leadership from regional, provincial to International level. Member 
of Executive Committee of National Economic Development and Labour Council (NEDLAC). Member of Country 
Descent Work Programme committee. Member of the SANAC Secretariat.

Mr Olebogeng Besnaar 
Ministerial Appointee

Ms Ansie Botha* 
Chief Director: Human Resources and Auxillary Support Services, Department of Energy, Pretoria. 

Mr Benedict Mogadime*  
Director: Employment Skills Development Unit, Department of Public Enterprises, Pretoria. 

Mr Mpilo Mbambisa
Deputy Director-General, Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs (DLGTA), Pretoria.



PART A:    Organisational Information

18

German Master, Electrical. MSc, University of Warwick, UK. Senior Managers Programme, Henley SA.

Mr Ravi Moodley 
Senior Manager, Eskom Academy of Learning.

Programme and Project Management Diploma, University of the Witwatersrand; Education and Adult Education 
Diplomas, University of Cape Town.
Leadership roles: Chairperson, Debating Committee, Modimosana Middle School; Culture and Entertainment 
Committee, Tlhabane College of Education and the South African Democratic Teachers’ Union (SADTU), Koster 
Branch; member of the Student Representative Council, Tlhabane College of Education; founder and coordinator 
of Mphe-Bana High School Conservation Club.

Mr Mercy Sekano 
Executive Director, Elijah Barayi Memorial Training Centre, Johannesburg. 

National Diploma in Human Resource Management, UNISA (current), Development Programme in Labour Relations 
and Programme in Human Resource Management, UNISA; Certificate in Supervisory Management, Graduate 
Institute of Management & Technology (GIMT); Certificate in Human Resource Management, Institute of People 
Management (IPM), SA.
Leadership roles: Exco member and past Chairperson of the Amanzi Statutory Council; Chairperson of the 
Employment Equity Forum, Rand Water; Provincial Treasurer, South African Municipal Workers Union, Gauteng; 
Chairperson, South African Municipal Workers Union Provincial Disciplinary Committee, Gauteng; Voting District 
Coordinator, General Elections 2009.

Mr Justice Sera 
Shop steward, Rand Water, Johannesburg.

Advanced Executive Programme Certificate, UNISA. Certificates in Risk Assessment and Strata Control, UNISA.
Leadership roles: Led the 20 million members of the International Federation of Chemical, Energy, Mine and 
General Workers’ Unions (ICEM) due to contributions to worker struggle; President, National Union of Mine 
Workers (re-elected unopposed for the third term); Labour representative, NEDLAC Executive Council; Board 
member, Minerals and Mining Development Board.

Business Management Diploma, Damelin. Labour Relations Diploma, Institute of People Management (IPM). Public 
Private Partnerships, Wits Graduate School of Public and Development Management.
Leadership roles: Council member, Independent Municipal and Allied Trade Union (IMATU) National Executive and 
Executive; Chairperson and member, Governing Body, Edenvale High School.

Mr Senzeni Zokwana*
Minister of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries

Mr Keith Swanepoel
Acting Regional Manager, Inner City Office, City of Johannesburg. 
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Mr Ravi Moodley 
Senior Manager, Eskom Academy of Learning.

University of Venda, BA (Psychology) and University Education Diploma), Corporate Governance (King II), Astro Tech. 
Competency in Conducting Outcomes-based Assessment certificate, Quality Executive Development. Corporate 
Governance, AstroTech. Presentation Skills, Speechcraft. Economics Literacy for Government employees (with 
Distinction). University of Pretoria, Certificate in Introduction to ISO 9000. The Mvula Trust - February 2001.
Leadership Roles: EWSETA Board, Executive Committee. Chairperson of the Water Sector Leadership Group 
Skills task team.

Ms Petunia Ramunenyiwa
Chief Director, Operational Support, Coordination and Consolidation, Department of Water and Sanitation. 

Certificate HR, UNISA. Applied Organisational Development Programme, UNISA (current).
Leadership Roles: Served in the ANC, SACP and COSATU. Serves on the following Boards: State Diamond 
Trader, MIC, Minerals and Mining Development, Unity Incorporation.

Mr Tshimane Montoedi
Deputy General Secretary, NUM. Programme in Business Communication, UNISA. 

HOD for Organising, Campaigns and Collective Bargaining, NUMSA. Masters Programme of Public Development 
and Management; University of Witwatersrand (Wits) (current); Diploma, Project Management, Wits. Certificate, 
Privatisation Management, Intrados (USA).
Leadership Roles: Responsible for leading the Collective Bargaining Department at NUMSA, the largest union in 
the country, and developing national union policies in collective bargaining and restructuring for the sector.

* Members who have resigned during the 2014/15 period

Mr Stephen Mkithiki Nhlapo
HOD for Organising, Campaigns and Collective Bargaining, NUMSA. 

(Pr Eng), MA, MSc and MBA.
Areas of specialisation: Strategic Management, Electrical Power Engineering and General Management.

Mr Mnonoki (Knox) Zhou Msebenzi
Managing Director, Nuclear Industry Association of South Africa (NIASA). Professional Engineer 

Senior Diploma in Political Economy and Philosophy, USSR Academy of Social Sciences, Moscow, Russia. Master 
in Social Sciences (Environmental Economics), London School of Economics, UK.
Leadership roles: General Secretary, National Cooperative Association of South Africa (NCASA); Chairperson, 
South African Federation of Burial Societies (SAFOBS); involved in creating a burial society network for collective 
self-empowerment and setting up a consumer network to mobilise community purchasing power; attended 
international conferences of cooperative movements; author of numerous publications on cooperative development 
as well as ecological and labour issues.

Mr Tebogo Phadu 
Policy Research Coordinator, ANC Luthuli House, Johannesburg.
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Foreword by the 
Chairperson

This Annual Report yet again 
creates an opportunity to reflect 
on the significance of the SETAs in 
general and the role of the EWSETA, 
specifically, in skills development 
and training. The shortage of skilled 
resources across all sectors is a 
serious obstacle to economic growth 
and industry competitiveness in 
South Africa. The levy grant scheme 
aims to expand knowledge and 
competency within our labour force 
and improve employability and 
productivity. There is little doubt that 
a skilled workforce will help steer the 
country along a trajectory of socio-
economic progress and societal well-
being.

The value of the SETAs lie in their understanding of labour 
market issues and ability to facilitate interventions that 
address skills needs in their respective industrial and 
economic sectors. In their drive to respond effectively to the 
demand for skills, however, the SETAs need support from 
employers and workers to create interventions and shape 
solutions.

In this regard, the EWSETA has made significant strides 
in increasing access to quality learning programmes and 
skills development interventions, as well as building strong 
partnerships with and between stakeholders and social 
partners.

Accounting Authority leadership

The unexpected early departure of our former Accounting 
Authority Chairperson, Mr Senzeni Zokwana, in May 2014 to 
become the Minister of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries, 
left a void in the SETA’s governance leadership and vision. 
Our Accounting Authority members, however, stepped 
forward unhesitatingly to further entrench his significant 
contribution to repositioning the EWSETA strategically as an 
influential role player in the energy and water services sector.   

Renewable energy and green economy

Other than biomass, renewable energy sources in South 
Africa have not yet been explored to the full. Building an 
inclusive green economy lies at the centre of finding solutions 
that will help to build social and ecological resilience and 
provide an opportunity to identify the solutions that works 
best for our local context. 

Fully utilising the opportunities presented in renewable 
energy and achieving an inclusive green economy requires 
a bottom-up approach and meaningful participation in the 
process, backed by strong policy signals from the top. 
The role of the EWSETA is to ensure that the country has 
the capacity of a skilled workforce to support our effective 
participation in these areas.
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Strategic and performance overview

The past financial year has seen significant progress in the 
implementation of the EWSETA’s renewed organisational 
structure. Among others, the realigned structure has started 
to address key capacity needs and most of the legacy 
issues raised in the Auditor-General’s report for 2012/13. 
Those still outstanding will be dealt with in the year ahead.

A number of our performance highlights during the past year 
are mentioned on page 12 of this report. Worth referring to 
here are the inaugural EWSETA Skills Summit targeted at 
the Saldanha Bay and broader West Coast community in 
partnership with the Department of Trade and Industry (dti) 
and the launch of a Renewable Energy Centre of Excellence 
(RECE) in August 2014 to respond to industry’s renewable 
energy skills needs. 

Collaboration and partnerships

The EWSETA’s interaction with TVET Colleges not only 
gives effect to a directive from the Department of Higher 
Education and Training in this regard, but also enables us 
to partner with these institutions in sector-specific skills 
development and training.

Aside from working directly with TVET Colleges to identify 
and support their skills development and training needs, we 
funded a research project in which the Stellenbosch University 
Water Institute conducted an educational needs analysis of 
TVET College lecturers in the South African water sector. 
The Phase 1 Report of the research project was completed 
successfully and the findings handed to the Deputy Minister of 
Higher Education and Training at our Annual General Meeting 
in Johannesburg on 6 November 2014.

We still have much to do to address and resolve youth 
unemployment in the country. Since the two sectors we 
service energy and water – are under the microscope in 
Parliament currently, as well as among our citizens, places 
the onus on the EWSETA to become more effective and 
efficient in responding to skills development needs in these 
areas, especially so for scarce and critical skills. We are 
actively participating in a number of working groups and 
forums at all three levels of government to continuously drive 
the skills development and training agenda of the country 
and specifically our sector. Our collaborative agreement 
with the National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) also 
enables us to contribute to supporting the youth of our 
country with relevant skills initiatives.

Acknowledgements 

On behalf of the EWSETA and its Accounting Authority, 
we wish the outgoing Chairperson, Mr Senzeni Zokwana, 
success during his term as Minister of Agriculture, Forestry 
and  Fisheries. I thank my fellow Accounting Authority 
members for their judicious support in filling the void left by 
the early departure of Mr Zokwana and their commitment to 
sound governance for the EWSETA. 

As an Accounting Authority, we thank the Executive 
team and employees for their contribution to continuous 
organisational improvement. As we approach the final 
year of implementation of the NSDS III, I am confident that 
their commitment to becoming a recognised, reputable 
Authority in skills development facilitation for the energy and 
water services sector will enable the EWSETA to continue 
to diligently deliver on its mandate. 

Mr Olebogeng Besnaar
Accounting Authority Chairperson (Interim)
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 
(EWSETA)
August 2015



Overview by the Chief 
Executive Officer

“We will continue to invest in 
education and skills development 
as that is the key to economic 
growth and development. We need 
engineers, electricians, plumbers, 
doctors, teachers and many other 
professionals to build our country’s 
economy. Education therefore 
remains an apex priority for this 
government.” 

-  President Jacob Zuma,  
State of the Nation Address, June 2014
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In his State of the Nation Address in June 2014, President 
Jacob Zuma cogently outlined the country’s priorities for 
the next five years. Pivotal amongst them are energy and 
water security and skilled human resources to address the 
challenges. 

As the recognised education and training Authority for the 
energy and water services sector, the EWSETA continues 
to coordinate, facilitate and quality assure sector-relevant 
skills development programmes to support the national 
priorities and create a sector skills pipeline to spur growth, 
create employment and eradicate poverty. 

As one of the country’s 21 Sector Education and Training 
Authorities (SETAs), the EWSETA has a critical role to play 
in facilitating interventions in the energy and water services 
sector to support national priorities. As SETAs we must 
work together to invest in education, training and skills 
development to create a skilled and capable workforce that 
supports an inclusive growth path. Our regular interaction 
with employers also helps us to facilitate work-integrated 
training opportunities for students and job placements for 
graduates. 

We are fast approaching the relicensing of all SETAs in April 
2016.  According to Higher Education and Training Minister, 
Dr Blade Nzimande, government is working with business 
and labour to again, where relevant, restructure the SETAs 
to respond to industry needs more effectively. 

At the same time, our peers in countries such as Italy, Russia, 
France and the Netherlands, commend our collaboration 
locally to build the country’s human resources capacity. 
This has resulted in initiatives such as Innovations in Public 
Employment Programmes  (IPEPs), multinational tenders 
that address the need for local business partnerships and 
the localisation of skills and economic development. 

We welcome the report from the Minister of Higher Education 
and Training on Skills for and through Strategic Integrated 
Projects (SIPs), which creates an interface between industry 
and the DHET to collaborate for maximum benefit and a 
better life for all in South Africa.
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The re-licensing of the SETAs in 2016 should include 
empowering management teams with the expertise and 
capacity to operate along business lines. I believe that with 
the right assistance and support, SETAs could all function 
well, at the same pace and with the abilities required to 
respond to industry needs. Instituting a business ethic of 
sound governance and goal-directed performance for all 
SETAs is critical. This will provide a performance framework 
and enabling environment to focus on the job at hand.

EWSETA Accounting Authority

The appointment of our former Chairperson, Mr Senzeni 
Zokwana, as the  Minister  of Agriculture, Forestry 
and Fisheries  in May 2014, left a sizeable gap within the 
EWSETA Accounting Authority. His leadership contributed 
significantly to the implementation of governance policies 
that guided the SETA out of administration. Despite his early 
departure from our Accounting Authority, the members 
continued to guide the EWSETA along a trajectory of sound 
governance. I thank them sincerely for their support of the 
EWSETA’s Executive Team, management and staff.

Information about Accounting Authority performance, as 
well as other Accounting Authority and governance matters, 
are dealt with in Governance Section of this annual report.

Highlights

The EWSETA experienced a number of highlights during 
the reporting period due, in no small way, to the dedicated 
efforts by our entire workforce. I thank them for their 
commitment to helping the SETA achieve its strategic goals.

I would like to refer to the following:
• The acquisition of our own building following a decision 

by the EWSETA Accounting Authority in November 
2012 to purchase a building, since escalating office 
rental had become a major expenditure. The purchase 
of the building was approved in August 2014 and we 
hope to occupy the new building by July/August 2015.

• The launch of a Free State pilot project in which the 
EWSETA facilitated the training of 553 water process 
controllers to service all the municipalities in the 
province.

• The launch of a Renewable Energy Centre of Excellence 
to respond to skills needs, especially photo-voltaic 
(PV) and concentrated solar power (CSP) energy skills. 
The Department of Energy allocated most of the solar 

energy projects to the Northern Cape, while the RECE 
is located in the special economic zone (solar corridor) 
as announced by dti Minister Rob Davies.

Stakeholder relationships

During the reporting period, we engaged with a number of 
major players in the nuclear and oil and gas sub-sectors, 
such as the South African Oil and Gas Alliance (SAOGA), 
to pursue the EWSETA’s involvement in Operation Phakisa. 
This ocean economy project is being driven by President 
Jacob Zuma. As the name suggests, the intention is to 
achieve results quickly. 

As a member of the Focus Team on Skills within the DHET, 
the EWSETA is well-positioned to help align theoretical and 
workplace learning to expedite skills development in this 
sector.

We intend working closely with the Manufacturing, 
Engineering and Related Services SETA (MERSETA), 
Chemical Industries SETA (CHIETA) and Transport SETA 
(TETA), to increase the ocean economy’s skills pool for 
Operation Phakisa.

The EWSETA also continuously engages and partners with 
other stakeholders within the public and private sectors 
locally and internationally to give effect to its mandate. During 
the past year, these included government departments (dti, 
DoE and DWS), the provincial governments of the Free 
State, Northern Cape, Eastern Cape and others, district 
municipalities (Vhembe, Ehlanzeni, Capicorn, Gert Sibanda), 
TVET Colleges and universities, as well as Aurecon and The 
Water Academy.

Operation Phakisa

Announced by President Jacob Zuma on 19 July 2014 in 
Durban, Operation Phakisa aims to unlock the potential 
of the ocean economy for South Africa to “move faster 
in meeting our targets”. 

The initiative supports the economic growth (5% by 2019) 
and job creation goals of the National Development Plan 
since the oceans surrounding the country can potentially 
contribute R177 billion to GDP and create over a million 
jobs by 2033. 
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In addition, we collaborated with a number of state-owned 
enterprises (SOEs) responsible for Strategic Integrated 
Projects. These included ESKOM, the IDC, DBSA, Transnet 
and the Trans-Caledonian Tunnel Authority (TCTA). 

International perspectives

The EWSETA signed a number of strategic Memoranda of 
Understanding (MoUs) with international partners during 
the past financial year to give effect to its NSDS III goals 
and pursue its rigorous penetration of the nuclear and oil 
and gas sub-sectors. 

International liaison and overseas study tours also included 
visits to the National Research Nuclear University (MEPhi), 
Rosenergoatom, Atomtechnergo and ROSATOM-CICET 
in Moscow, Russia. Visits to Italy and Spain included 
liaison with the National Research Council in Rome, as 
well as the 4 U Alliance Universities and CICenergiGUNE 
Energy Cooperative Research Centre in Madrid, LEITAT 
Technological Centre in Barcelona, TKNIKA in the Bass 
Country and CTAER and PSA-Ciemot in Almeria.

The EWSETA entered into a strategic partnership with the 
Southern African Netherlands Chamber of Commerce 
(SANEC) to facilitate our work with Dutch companies in 
an oil and gas skills training programme and to maximise 
research, development and innovation opportunities in the 
energy and water services sector between the two partners. 
We are currently also working with SANEC, SAOGA and 
IRO, to organise a South Africa/Netherlands Oil and Gas 
Summit.

Organisational environment 

Following the EWSETA’s restructuring process during 
the previous financial year, our focus during the reporting 
period was on establishing a provincial presence in all 
nine provinces to improve service delivery to stakeholders 
and the citizenry. We launched the first EWSETA regional 
office in the Western Cape at the Westlake Campus of the 
False Bay Technical and Vocational Education and Training 
(TVET) College. We will continue to open offices in the other 
provinces in the year ahead.

During the past year, our focus during the preceding period 
on dedicating resources and appointing skilled people in 
specific areas has borne fruit. Our new established Skills 
Planning Department has ensured that scarce and critical 

skills are prioritised and sector activities implemented more 
effectively. The appointment of a Quality Assurance Manager 
has improved turn-around times in quality assurance, 
accreditation audits and moderations. The new Projects 
Office is ensuring that project implementation, support and 
monitoring are done as scheduled and payments made 
timeously.

I am also pleased to report that we concluded the staff 
matching and placing process successfully. The promotion 
of staff had a positive impact on staff morale, which is 
considerably more positive since the previous reporting 
period.

Our three-year Information and Communications Technology 
(ICT) Master Plan, aligned with the COBIT 5 Framework 
and the Corporate Governance ICT Framework of the 
Department of Public Service and Administration, which 
we embarked on in 2013, now consists of Management 
Information System (MIS) modules for our QA, DG, Finance, 
SSP, NLRD and other units. 

We noted that during the previous reporting period, the 
LMIS module was used to produce a comprehensive 
Occupational Profile Dictionary to help sector stakeholders 
improve their own skills needs planning. We will strengthen 
this module continuously to maintain and enhance these 
value-added services for the benefit of our stakeholders. 
The submission of employer WSPs and ATRs has enabled 
our Skills Planning Department to better gauge the 
demand-side of employer skills needs. We are capturing 
data from the various education institutions to assist us in 
better understanding the current supply-side.  

Our MIS and a comprehensive library of ICT frameworks 
and new and reviewed policies and procedures are helping 
us to work smarter. We look forward to further entrenching 
these systems in the year ahead.

Financial management overview

During the reporting period, the EWSETA established a 
Risk, Compliance and Reporting Department to ensure that 
the SETA complies with statutory guidelines and that our 
strategic risk register is updated regularly.

An improved project management system has also refined 
our commitments schedule to the satisfaction of both 
internal and external auditors. This has strengthened the 
veracity of our annual financial reporting, as well as the way 
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in which we report to Accounting Authority sub-committees, 
National Treasury and the DHET.

Appreciation

In closing and on behalf of the EWSETA, I thank our 
former Chairperson, Mr Senzeni Zokwana, as well as our 
Accounting Authority members and Accounting Authority 
sub-committees for their guidance and oversight of our 
activities during the past year. My heartfelt appreciation 
goes to the EWSETA Executive Team and all employees 
for their significant contributions to our achievements and 
realization of our goals.

Going forward

I believe that the EWSETA has made significant strides 
during the past two years in reaffirming its value proposition 
as a quality assurer and skills development facilitator to 
stakeholders in the energy and water services sector. We 
remain steadfast in our resolve as a SETA to providing this 
country with the education, training and skills development 
it needs to move ahead as a leading economy on the 
African continent.

As we prepare for re-licensing in 2016, our focus is on 
maintaining organisational stability and growth. We will 
ardently pursue our role in meeting the skills development 
needs in the energy and water services sector. Priority 
areas will include aligning our strategies with government 
priorities and continuously improving the EWSETA’s 
business processes and systems to support our rigorous 
penetration of the nuclear and oil and gas sub-sectors 
within the energy sector.

Mr Errol Gradwell
Chief Executive Officer
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 
(EWSETA)
August 2015



Overview by the Chief 
Financial Officer

Strategically, during the 2014/15 
reporting period, the EWSETA 
focused its financial performance 
on ensuring that existing funding 
was used optimally through  a more 
effective  and efficient organisational 
structure, better resourcing and the 
implementation of new and revised 
systems. We also harnessed funding 
sources through value-added 
relations with potential investors, 
paying clients, donors, sponsors and 
partners in the private and public 
sectors.

Strategically, during the 2014/15 reporting period, the 
EWSETA focused its financial performance on ensuring that 
existing funding was used optimally through  a more effective  
and efficient organisational structure, better resourcing and 
the implementation of new and revised systems. We also 
harnessed funding sources through value-added relations 
with potential investors, paying clients, donors, sponsors 
and partners in the private and public sectors.

Working within a revised structure 

The EWSETA’s new structure continued to operate well 
and contribute to organisational stability, which improved 
staff morale. Vacant positions remained a challenge 
during the reporting period. The next phase, depending 
on affordability, is to fill the positions of officers, specialists 
and administrators and also take on new interns to boost 
capacity.

Highlights during the year

Some of the financial management focus areas, progress 
and achievements during the year under review included:
• implementing financial and procurement modules in a 

number of critical systems
• improvements made to the Irregular expenditure 

incurred in the current year
• dealing with non-compliance in the best possible way
• perfecting our systems to achieve a clean audit.

Financial accounting

The EWSETA has mechanisms in place to identify, manage 
and monitor risks that impact on its business activities. 
These mechanisms include well-maintained risk registers 
to identify emerging risks and mitigate existing risks, as 
well as procedures to closely monitor the ways in which we 
address risks.
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In terms of grants and levies payable by the EWSETA, we 
increased the payment of levies during the reporting period 
due to enhanced investment policies and improved the 
pay-out ratio of mandatory grants and payments for goods 
and services.

The increase in levy income over the past year was 
attributable mainly to payroll increases within the contributing 
sectors. Levies received during the past year amounted to 
R253  053 million, compared to R 226  072 million in the 
previous financial year.  

We also improved our supply chain procurement processes 
and aligned our policies and procedures with regulations to 
reduce non-compliance. 

Financial challenges

A number of constraints, such as funding, affected the 
EWSETA’s ability to fulfil its mandate of facilitating skills 
development and training in the energy and water services 
sector effectively during the reporting period. 

Filling vacant positions within the Finance Branch, 
specifically the Executive position, has also been a challenge 
and hampered our ability to secure the capacity required to 
deliver against our mandate. 

Despite this challenge, the Finance Branch supported the 
organisation’s performance to the best of its ability. As the 
Acting Chief Financial Officer, it gives me great pleasure, 
therefore, to confirm that the EWSETA received an 
unqualified audit opinion from the Auditor-General of South 
Africa.

Appreciation

Financial compliance within the framework approved 
by the EWSETA Accounting Authority is integral to our 
organisational well-being. Support from the Accounting 
Authority and management is critical in this regard and 
we thank the Accounting Authority sub-committees, 
management and staff for their cooperation during the 
reporting period.

Priorities, challenges and focus areas 
going forward

The EWSETA Finance Branch, with its line departments 
and, where relevant, support from the Department of 
Higher Education and Training, has prioritised a number of 
challenges and focus areas to attend to going forward. 

Priority will be given to implementing our new and reviewed 
policies and procedures and filling vacancies as funds allow. 
We will also further improve our supply chain processes to 
eliminate irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, 
improve procurement plans and address non-compliance 
throughout the organisation.

Implementing our investment policy in the forthcoming 
financial year through greater stakeholder engagement will 
increase our levy contributions and ultimately the EWSETA’s 
available funds. We will also implement our Performance 
Management System to improve performance overall in our 
Key Performance Areas (KPAs).

Ms Cathrine Kobyana
Chief Financial Officer (Acting)
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 
(EWSETA)
August 2015



PART A:    Organisational Information

28

Introduction

The commitment by the EWSETA to maintain the 
highest standards of governance is fundamental to the 
management of public finances and resources. The SETA 
has established systems and governance structures to 
oversee these processes, improve accountability and 
ensure good governance and the effective, efficient and 
cost-effective use of state resources. These systems and 
structures are crucial to promoting good governance and 
compliance with legislative requirements.

Risk management

Nature of risk management

The SETA has developed a Risk Management Policy and 
Risk Management Strategy as a management tool and 
for use by other employees to identify, measure, evaluate, 
treat, monitor and communicate risks associated with 
business operations, financial matters and projects. The risk 
management implementation plan is in place to give effect 
to the implementation of the Risk Management Policy, Risk 
Management Strategy and Fraud Prevention Plan. 

Managing risk is integral to strategic management within 
the EWSETA to methodically and intuitively expose and 
address risks related to the activities of the SETA through 
risk identification, risk assessment and mitigation strategies 
that enhance the control environment. The EWSETA has a 
dedicated function that oversees and coordinates proactive 
risks identification, assessment and the implementation of 
the risk management process.

Risk assessment

Risk assessments are conducted annually to identify risk 
exposure. Control mitigation strategies are designed to 
respond to risks that could occur throughout the EWSETA. 
We identified the operational and top 20 strategic risks 
facing the SETA at the beginning of the year under review 

and developed mitigation strategies to deal with the 
potential threats. The completed risk register was provided 
to Internal Audit to prepare their annual Risk-based Plan. 

High-risk exposures are reviewed regularly to determine the 
effectiveness of internal controls. New and emerging risks 
are identified through external environmental scanning and 
analysing reports presented to the governance structures. 
Management is encouraged to continuously identify new 
and emerging risks and/or report loss incidents. 

Risk monitoring

The EWSETA Accounting Authority established an Audit 
and Risk Committee (ARC) in accordance with Section 51 
(1) (a) (i) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 
1 of 1999. This requires effective, efficient and transparent 
systems of financial and risk management and internal 
control. The purpose of the ARC is to oversee the SETA’s risk 
management systems, practices and procedures to ensure 
the effectiveness of risk identification and management 
across all business units, as well as compliance with 
internal guidelines and external requirements. The 
Committee convenes on a quarterly basis and is chaired by 
an independent external person. 

The Committee reviewed the risk management process, 
strategic risk register and operational risk registers and 
recommended improvement to these processes. The 
quarterly Risk Management progress reports are presented 
to the ARC for oversight, monitoring and evaluation of the 
risk management system and recommends improvements 
to risk mitigation strategies. A progress report on the 
monitoring and implementation of risk mitigation strategies 
is presented to the relevant management oversight 
structures for monitoring and evaluation. 

Challenges

While we have made significant progress in implementing 
the risk management process, a number of challenges 
remain that could impact negatively on embedding 

Risk Management Report

For the year ended 31 March 2015



EWSETA ANNUAL REPORT    2014/15

29

and inculcating a culture of risk management in the 
organisation. This relates to:
• insufficient capacity to drive the risk management 

process. 
• strengthening risk management training and support 

for management and employees.
• aligning performance management incentives with 

the entity’s approved risk management appetite and 
tolerances.

Monitoring of audit findings

Our management team tracks and monitors progress 
against the implementation of the remedial actions 
recommended by external and internal audit findings 
and submits a quarterly status report to the ARC. The 
Committee assesses and oversees the implementation 
of agreed to remedial actions to address internal control 
deficiencies.

Compliance

The EWSETA is committed to the highest ethical and moral 
standards and ensuring that its activities comply with 
applicable laws. 

We use a compliance checklist aligned with regulatory 
requirements to prevent and detect non-compliance and 
irregularities. Irregularities are recorded in the irregular 
expenditure register, as prescribed by National Treasury, 
and reported on a quarterly basis to the ARC and National 
Treasury. The reports are consolidated at the end of each 
financial year and submitted to the Accounting Officer. 

We reviewed our financial, operational, governance and 
information technology policies and procedures during 
the past financial year and developed new policies and 
procedures to close compliance gaps.

Where applicable, we will continue to monitor changes 
in legislation, develop new policies and procedures in 
response to changes in regulations and practice.

Fraud Prevention Plan

Our Fraud Prevention Plan sets out actions to prevent fraud 
and corruption. The plan spells out the EWSETA’s stance 
on fraud and corruption and reinforces existing systems, 

policies and procedures that deter, prevent, detect, react to 
and reduce the impact of fraud and corruption. The Fraud 
Prevention Plan is implemented through our Induction and 
Orientation Programme for new employees and contains 
a Gift Policy aligned with our Code of Conduct, as well as 
procedures to vet employees and service providers, adhere 
to supply chain management, regularly update the service 
provider database and for the signing of declarations of 
interest.

Employees are encouraged to blow the whistle to their 
supervisors about fraudulent activities. Managers and 
staff are responsible for the detection, prevention and 
investigation of fraud and corruption and must report 
incidents and allegations of fraud and corruption to the Chief 
Executive Officer. All cases of alleged irregular or fraudulent 
practices received from the Presidential Hotline, members 
of the public and media are investigated, responded to and 
resolved.

Code of Conduct

A Code of Conduct for the EWSETA, with other policies and 
prescripts, is in place to provide employees with an ethical 
guideline about what is expected of them in their individual 
and business conduct and their relationship with others. 
New staff are provided with, made aware of and requested 
to acquaint themselves with the Code of Conduct during 
the induction and orientation programmes.
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As the Chief Executive Officer of the EWSETA, I am 
responsible for the preparation of the public entity’s 
performance information and for the judgements made in 
this information.

I am also responsible for establishing and implementing a 
system of internal control designed to provide reasonable 
assurance about the integrity and reliability of performance 
information.

In my opinion, the performance information contained in this 
Annual Report fairly reflects the actual achievements against 
planned objectives, indicators and targets contained in the 
Strategic and Annual Performance Plan of the EWSETA for 
the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

The EWSETA’s performance information for the year then 
ended has been examined by the external auditors. Their 
report is presented on page 79-83. 

The performance information of the entity set out on 
pages 49 to 57 was approved by the EWSETA Accounting 
Authority.

Mr Errol Gradwell
Chief Executive Officer
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 
(EWSETA)
August 2015

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of 
Responsibility for 
Performance Information



Report by the Chief 
Operations Officer

“It is clear to me that EWSETA is 
committed, through its comprehensive 
Research Strategy, to improving the 
state of labour market intelligence 
for sector skills planning by giving 
leadership on skills development 
research in the sector and establishing 
a platform for discussion of research 
issues pertaining to the sector.”

– Mr Mduduzi Manana, 
Deputy Minister of Higher Education and Training, 
EWSETA Annual General Meeting Dinner, 6 
November 2014

The commendation from the Deputy Minister of Higher 
Education and Training (DHET) at the EWSETA’s Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) in November 2014 related to two 
important achievements during the year under review. 

Firstly, our leadership role in labour market research in the 
energy and water services sector to identify, analyse and 
resolve the real challenges in skills development within the 
sector. Secondly, the delivery of the research reports to 
the DHET as products of our collaboration with our own 
universities to conduct the research. 

Closer collaboration between the SETAs and institutions of 
learning is an approach that the DHET refers to regularly, 
especially in the area of research where our universities, 
universities of technology and TVET Colleges have the 
resources and expertise to deliver good results.

Operational achievements and challenges

The Operations Branch drives the EWSETA’s operations 
strategy, policies, platforms and programmes to achieve 
cross-component process excellence and accomplish 
EWSETA, stakeholder and national goals and objectives.

The Auditor-General audited the usefulness and reliability of 
performance information against pre-determined objectives 
and found that in the areas of Quality Assurance, Skills 
Delivery and Discretionary Grants, performance indicators 
were poorly defined and performance therefore difficult to 
measure. As a result, material findings were identified on the 
usefulness of the performance information while no material 
findings were identified on the reliability of performance 
information.

The areas of concern identified by the audit have been 
addressed in the 2016/17 Strategic Plan and Annual 
Performance Plan.  Importantly, we also addressed the 
inconsistencies between the two plans and for the first 
time, included Technical Indicator Descriptors to improve 
the measurability of performance information.
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The delay in staff appointments and resultant shortage in 
capacity, due mainly to budget constraints, remained a 
major challenge during the reporting period. This affected 
operations throughout the organisation and inhibited 
the implementation of a number of planned strategic 
interventions.

Skills planning, skills delivery, project management and 
quality assurance, as well as the newly established Western 
Cape regional office, were similarly affected, specifically by 
the lack of practitioners and administrative support. We 
contracted a regional coordinator and recruited an intern 
to secure some capacity. The appointment of the intern 
supported our focus on providing unemployed graduates 
with internships. Addressing the capacity challenge is a 
priority going forward.

During the review period, the EWSETA had to align its funding 
policy with targets set by the DHET for artisan training. This 
entailed a new funding model for artisans, with an increase to 
R139 000. As one of the smaller SETAs, meeting this target 
further constrained our already limited budget, especially 
since the R180 million earmarked for discretionary grants 
had already been allocated.

Responding effectively to Departmental targets is a 
challenge that the EWSETA will have to address in the 
forthcoming financial year.

Strategic outcome-orientated goals

The EWSETA Accounting Authority-approved strategic 
outcome-orientated goals for the 2014/15 APP remained 
the same as for the previous financial year. These goals 
are summarised in the Table on pages 9-11 of this report, 
while our performance against the pre-determined NSDS III 
objectives to support goal achievement is reflected in the 
Table on Performance against Pre-determined Objectives 
on pages 49-57 of this report.

Briefly, from an operations perspective, our strategic 
outcomes-orientated goals entailed:
• Strengthening institutional capabilities, through 

governance and management systems, including 
funds management, leadership and human resource 
management and information technology (IT) 
administration.

• Credible mechanism for skills planning to ensure 
sector skills planning compliance, commissioned skills 
development research and update of annual Sector 
Skills Plans (SSPs) with scarce skills list.

• Access to occupation-directed programmes to 
develop scarce, middle level and artisan skills through 
workplace training and partnerships.

• Promote the TVET College system to increase capacity 
through partnerships.

• Improved workplace skills development through 
quality assurance of skills planning providers, 
having accredited training centres and ensuring that 
accredited assessors and occupational training are in 
place.

In terms of regional operations, initiatives to ensure we 
meet our targets of engaging and supporting provincial 
stakeholders are ongoing.

Our skills delivery initiatives have focused on making 
sure that learners are trained through skills development 
and Recognition of Prior Learning, artisan development, 
bursaries and the placement of learners in work-integrated 
learnerships. 

Our Project Management Department has worked hard 
to ensure that projects are in place and the commitment 
schedule up to date. The MIS project management module 
will become fully functional in the year ahead, including the 
monitoring of projects not captured by the MIS.

During the reporting period, we continued to support 
cooperatives, SMMEs, community-based organisations and 
NGOs through our informal sector support programmes.

Skills planning and Workplace Skills Plans 
(WSP)

The EWSETA’s annual update of its Sector Skills Plan 
(SSP) was completed and accepted.  We also collected 
Workplace Skills Plans (WSPs), Annual Training Reports 
(ATRs) and PIVOTAL Plans from employers. I am pleased to 
report that the number of WSPs submitted during the past 
financial year increased to 119 (2014: 98). 



PART B:    Performance Information

34

This improvement is an indication that our SSP engagement 
initiatives are bearing fruit. The submission of inaccurate 
data, such as on scarce skills, is unethical and distorts 
the aggregated data we use for the Sector Skills Plan, as 
well as the performance indicators in our Strategic Plan 
and APP. Engaging with employers to ensure that we 
receive WSPs, ATRs and PIVOTAL plans and reports 
with accurate and well-prepared data therefore remains 
a priority.

Regional operation

During the 2014/15 financial year, we opened a new 
EWSETA-dedicated regional office in the Western Cape 
at the Westlake campus of the False Bay TVET College 
and acted as the lead SETA in a regional office opened 
in the North West Province. We will be opening offices 
in the Free State, Eastern Cape, Northern Cape and 
Kwazulu-Natal during the forthcoming financial years as 
part of our strategy to provide services to stakeholders 
in the provinces.

Challenges integral to establishing a regional presence, 
such as travelling between offices in the Province and 
insufficient administrative support, placed the regional 
coordinator under significant pressure. As a result, 
the monitoring of projects was insufficient in many 
instances. We trust that the issue of sufficient capacity 
will be dealt with adequately in the financial year ahead.

Quality assurance and compliance

In response to an urgent need by the green economy 
energy sub-sector, the EWSETA prioritised the 
development of the related qualifications. We worked 
with stakeholders and providers to create a new quality 
assurance framework and fast-tracked turnaround 
times to expedite our response. I commend our green 
economy team for ensuring that by financial year-end, 
two of the required 11 qualifications had gone out for 
comment.

The quality assurance module in our new MIS posed a 
challenge at times, but the issues have been resolved 
and staff members have been trained to use the new 
system. As a result, the EWSETA’s certification process 
is greatly improved compared to the previous year and 
the quality assurance and compliance team can provide 
stakeholders with a more efficient service. 

We successfully resolved a number of legacy issues, 
specifically the backlog of certificates for learners and 
accredited skills development providers. Going forward, 
a number of exciting developments are on the cards, 
such as replacing outdated equipment and extensive 
staff training to further improve our service levels.

The review and Accounting Authority approval of 
important policies that guide the EWSETA’s operations 
was a significant highlight during the reporting period. 
The review process included stakeholder consultation 
through SSP roadshows to ensure that policies are 
aligned with sound governance practices and comply 
with relevant legislation. The Skills Development 
Provider Accreditation Policy, Moderation and Assessor 
Policy and Certification Policy were finalised and 
implemented during the past year, while the RPL policy 
was reviewed and will be recommended for approval in 
the forthcoming financial year.

Skills delivery and project management

Expecting only one manager to meet learning 
programme performance information targets, including 
artisan development in the sectors, has been the main 
challenge for the Skills Delivery Department. Additional 
support for the Manager became available only in 
the 3rd quarter of the reporting period and while this 
improved the situation, challenges remained in some 
areas.

The problem with the credibility, reliability and 
usefulness of the information received persisted. A 
similar situation occurred in the previous financial year 
when we had to remove some of the information from 
the Annual Performance Report. For two successive 
years, the reliability of performance information remains 
unqualified. Improving the receipt of useful information 
has been addressed in the 2016/17 Strategic Plan.

The first draft of our Performance Information Standard 
Operating Procedures will be finalised in the forthcoming 
reporting year. We are confident that when implemented, 
this will address the problems with collating, collecting 
and validating information and many of the other 
challenges experienced to date.

An achievement in documenting information has been 
the commissioning of The Document Warehouse to 
implement an electronic records management system. 
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This includes the storing of all historical data. The initial 
teething problems with the system were resolved and 
we look forward to an effectively functioning records 
management system in the year ahead.

Successes and challenges

Along with many successes during the past year, there 
is still scope for improvement. We started planning in 
March 2015 to close the gaps identified during the 
reporting period. The process will be inclusive and 
involve co-operation and collaboration among all our 
staff to achieve our objectives in this regard.

Certainly, the numbers in our APP are indicative of 
improved performance over the past financial year as 
compared to the previous year. We will continue to 
improve our ability to meeting stakeholder needs and 
achieve our NSDS III targets in the year that lies ahead.

Some of our successes included SSP roadshows to 
Cape Town, KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng. As a result, 
we received WSPs from stakeholders who had not 
submitted them previously. Despite the legacy issues 
mentioned earlier, such as the serious irregularity of 
learnerships not entered into the system, the increase 
in submitted reports over the past year has been 
encouraging. 

While the EWSETA Accounting Authority approved 
16 and signed off on 15 projects during the reporting 
period, other projects have been rolled over into the 
new financial year.

Some of our skills delivery highlights included:
• Three Ministers attended the launch of our new 

Renewable Energy Centre of Excellence (RECE), 
as well as a number of international dignitaries in 
response to the CEO’s contact with and visits to our 
international partners. Their attendance changed 
stakeholder perceptions towards the EWSETA 
leadership and our relevance to the sector and 
achieving the country’s economic goals.

• The first phase of research by the University of 
Stellenbosch Water Institute on an “Educational 
needs analysis of educators in the water sector at 
TVET Colleges” was completed successfully and 
the report officially handed to the Deputy Minister 
of Higher Education and Training, the Honorable 
Mduduzi Comfort Manana. The second phase, 

which resulted from first phase recommendations, 
will focus on implementing a capacity building 
programme for TVET College lecturers in the new 
financial year.

• AURECON SA (Pty) Ltd and KhulaNonke Training 
and Development (Pty) Ltd were appointed in June 
2013 by the Motheo TVET to roll-out accredited 
Process Controller training to 553 unemployed 
youth. The group included matriculants with 
Mathematics and Science and unemployed young 
people with a BSc or National Diploma in Water 
Care, as well as postgraduates. The focus of their 
three-year training is on operating and maintaining 
water and waste water-related infrastructure 
at Water Service Authorities in the Free State 
Province. We completed the Phase 1 of the project 
successfully during the review period. All learners 
graduated at NQF 2 of the related programmes and 
progressed to Phase 2. 

• A group of 175 learners from various cooperatives 
successfully completed NQF 1 of the Electrical 
Engineering Learnership. The EWSETA collaborated 
with the South African National Apex Cooperatives 
(SANACO) for the project and reached more than 
30 cooperatives in seven provinces, excluding 
Gauteng and the Western Cape.

• We reached approximately 10 SMMEs in 
KwaZulu-Natal through our collaboration with 
Busisiwe Communications to capacitate them 
through new venture creation skills programmes.

• NGO and worker-initiated projects are included as 
successes for the EWSETA for the period under 
review.

Some of the service gaps we encountered and the 
remedial plan to address those included:
• A lack of comprehensive and standardised 

operating procedures to deliver more efficient 
and effective administration, management and 
performance reporting against pre-determined 
objectives. The SOP has been drafted and will be 
implemented in the forthcoming year.

• A lack of a SOP for the administration and 
management of the commitment schedule. This 
has been developed and implemented the financial 
year ahead.

• A need to improve the monitoring and evaluation 
of skills development interventions, especially 
EWSETA-funded projects. We will develop a 
Monitoring and Evaluation Policy in the year ahead.
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• A need to improve the usefulness of performance 
information by ensuring that the Sector Skills Plan 
(SSP), Strategic Plan (SP) and Annual Performance 
Plan (APP) are aligned with and supported by well-
defined Technical Indicator Descriptors (TIDs). 
These TIDs are included in the EWSETA’s Strategic 
Plan for 2016/17. 

Looking ahead

During the reporting year, we initiated the development of 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) to institutionalise 
these procedures. The intention with these procedures 
is to improve the administration and management of 
performance information and our Commitment Schedule 
for discretionary grants.  

The EWSETA improved its MIS. This enables us to, among 
others, use the discretionary grants online module for the 
provision of quality assurance. Key quality assurance policies 
have been reviewed and approved by the Accounting 
Authority. The Funding Policy was reviewed to align it with 
the EWSETA’s strategic interventions and the SETA Grants 
regulations, in particular the revised Guidelines to the Grant 
regulations that was tabled by DHET. 

We envisage that the above-mentioned improvements, 
coupled with the much-improved Strategic Plan – aligned 
with the Annual Performance Plan and supported by well-
defined Technical Indicator Descriptors – will improve the 
EWSETA’s performance significantly. Our ultimate goal is to 
achieve the objectives of the Skills Development Act, 97 
of 1998 (as amended) and provide workers, unemployed 
learners and all relevant stakeholders with needs-
specific, standardised and quality-driven training and skills 
development services.

Ms Tsholofelo Mokotedi
Chief Operations Officer (Acting)
Energy and Water Sector Educations and Training Authority 
(EWSETA)
August 2015
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“By responding to Goal 1 of the NSDS III, which many of you may be aware speaks to 
Establishing a Credible Institutional Mechanism for Skills Planning, SETA’s are able to document 
and communicate by way of their Sector Skills Plans, their sector’s skills supply and demand, 
by developing solid baseline indicators. Through the SSPs, one is able to get a realistic picture 
of what the skills development and training landscape looks like and what needs to be done to 
address the challenges identified in the short, medium and long term.  However, it is through 
the SSP that deeper issues are identified that require further analysis and these two reports are 
commendable and invaluable products of that very exercise undertaken by the EWSETA.”

– DHET Deputy Minister, Mr M C Manana, at the EWSETA Johannesburg AGM Dinner

For the year ended 31 March 2015

EWSETA Operations Department
Performance Reports

The Skills Development and Planning Department is responsible 
for the development of the Sector Skills Plan, administration of 
mandatory grants and driving the EWSETA’s planning, research 
and skills development. 

Sector Skills Plan (SSP)

In accordance with the Skills Development Act, No 97 of 1998, 
Section 10(1) (a), each SETA is required to develop a Sector 
Skills Plan (SSP) within the framework of the National Skills 
Development Strategy (NSDS). The department manages the 
process of updating, annually, the EWSETA SSP. The 2014 
process was completed successfully and the updated SSP 
approved by the DHET. The update enables the EWSETA to 
implement National Qualifications Framework (NQF) registered 
and quality-assured PIVOTAL programmes that address the 
priority, scarce and critical skills needs in the energy and water 
services sector.

Stakeholder participation is integral to compiling the Sector Skills 
Plan (SSP). Consultations were held with key stakeholders in the 
sector and the research process steps are reflected in the table 
below.

Table 1: Key steps in the SSP research process 

Key research steps for the Sector Skills Plan
Review of existing data and information sources
Literature search of studies in the sector
Analysis of industry market reports
Review of workplace skills plans and annual training 
reports
Interviews with key informants in the sector
Workshops with stakeholders
Revision of the Sector Skills Plan 
Presentation of SSP to EWSETA stakeholders 
Approval of SSP with Accounting Authority

Skills Development and Planning
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The table below provides data on employment by sector as extracted from our SSP.

Table 2:  Male and female workers employed in different sectors

 
Jan-Mar 2014 Jan-Mar 2015

Employed  (1 000) Employed (1 000)
Males and females employed in: 15 055 15 459
• Agriculture 709 891
• Mining 424 443
• Manufacturing 1 804 1 779
• Utilities 130 143
• Construction 1 199 1 322
• Trade 3 186 3 046
• Transport 895 899
• Finance 2 045 2 195
• Community and social services 3 428 3 450
• Private households 1 231 1 288
• Other 3 4
Source: Stats SA Quarterly Labour Force Survey, Quarter 1, 2015

 

According to the Standard Industrial Classification Codes, 
utilities in South Africa consist of energy, gas, steam and 
hot water supply, as well as the collection, purification and 
distribution of water. According to the above-referenced 
data from Stats SA, the utilities sector employs 143 016 of 

the 15 459 419 people employed in South Africa or 0.93% 
of the country’s total labour force.

The utilities sector’s contribution to GDP is shown in the 
figure below.

Figure 1: Contribution to GDP by the utilities sector.

2.2% Agriculture, forestry and fishing

5.1% Mining and quarrying

15.2% Manufacturing

1.7% Electricity, gas and water

3.1% Construction

12.5% Wholesale, retail and motor trade, catering and equipment

9.0% Transport, storage and communication

21.5% Finance, real estate and business service

13.5% General Government

5.4% Personal Services

(Source: Stats SA, QLFS Quarter 1, 2014)
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Employer Grants

During the 2014/15 financial year, employer grant 
applications increased by 21 to 119 (2014: 98) of which we 
approved 99.  Employer Grant levies received amounted to 
R 56 390 million, with R44 901 million paid out for approved 
submissions. 

The EWSETA is continuously striving to improve the 
submission rate and data quality. The EWSETA held 
stakeholder roadshows to explain the mandatory grant 
processes. For data quality improvement, the EWSETA 
is using the source data approach. The benefits of using 
the source data approach are that the format remains fairly 
simple and hence becomes easier each year; thus the 
employer can start compiling information even before the 
template is finalised. 

The implementation of the mandatory grant module on the 
new MIS is just one of the enhancements to our submission 
process. We will continue to engage stakeholders through 
WSP and ATR capacity building workshops to improve our 
2015/16 submission rate.

Research

A number of reports from research conducted within the 
energy and water services sector were concluded during 
the reporting period. These included:

(a)     An Educational Needs Analysis of Educators in the 
Water Sector at Technical and Vocational Education 
Training (TVET) Colleges in South Africa

Undertaken in partnership with the Stellenbosch University 
Water Institute, the first phase of the project was presented 
at the 2014 Biennial Conference of the Water Institute of 
Southern Africa (WISA) in Mpumalanga and to a broader 
stakeholder base at our AGMs in Johannesburg and 
Cape Town in November 2014. The study looked at the 
status quo of intermediate level qualifications in the water 
and wastewater sector, the educational needs of TVET 
College lecturers and the skills requirements of industry, to 
determine skills gaps.

(b)     Development of Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) 
expertise within the EWSETA

The purpose of the study was to create capacity within the 
EWSETA to implement RPL processes by training staff and 
stakeholders in the procedures and thereby encouraging 
overall sector development.

(c)     Prediction of future energy scenarios

The EWSETA commissioned and incorporated the RPL 
study in its strategic intervention in the Northern Cape. 
The study details the current career paths specific to 
South Africa, with a particular focus on the Northern Cape 
Province and the renewable energy and energy efficiency 
industries, forecasts the skills demand up to 2030 and 
concludes with a skills development plan. We partnered 
with the University of Johannesburg in this research study.

(d)     Research into the availability of and articulation possibilities 
between qualifications and part-qualifications in the energy 
and water services sector

The EWSETA and the South African Qualifications Authority 
(SAQA) commissioned the research to identify barriers to 
successful articulation, determine why the barriers are in 
place and, critically, what can be done to remove them. 
Importantly, the study also had to identify articulation routes 
within the energy and water services sector and outline 
career pathways.

In terms of the study, ‘… general lack of access to articulation 
information, for learners, educators and employers, is 
present in the water and energy services sector, taxing the 
sector further as learners are lost to other sectors as they 
are not aware of the options available to them or capacity 
is lost as currently working professionals do not take up 
further studies as neither they, nor their employers, are 
aware of potential opportunities’.

The EWSETA has achieved a number of the milestones 
identified in its Research Strategy. Going forward, we will 
continue to represent the EWSETA in a number of research 
forums and working groups and build the capacity of 
the Skills Planning Department, which is responsible for 
research activities.
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Quality Assurance and Compliance

At the brink of a technological evolution, South Africa as a 
nation now needs a new way of thinking when developing 
young talent that can compete within our turbulent working 
world. Due to our high level of unemployment combined 
with our national power crisis, the strain on our national 
power grid cries out for skilled entrepreneurs that can 
create sustainable business models which can carry us into 
the future.

As a SETA mandated to specialise in training for the energy 
and water industries, we understand that most of the 
independent power producers need workers with skills 
in the application of photovoltaic, solar and wind energy 
technologies. Currently, plans to meet the critical demand 
for these new skills are insufficient. Similarly, we lack the 
curricula to train renewable energy technologists. 

The EWSETA’s response to this challenge is the relentless 
pursuit of its Quality Assurance and Compliance 
Department to lay a firm foundation for new technology 
training by facilitating and funding sector initiatives to 
develop occupational qualifications that will create sufficient 
skills locally in renewable energy technologies to meet the 
demand within the energy and water services sector.

It is also advantageous for the EWSETA to penetrate the 
new technologies by developing occupational qualifications 
that support the qualification development methodologies 
of QCTO.

The following tables and graphs depict the EWSETA’s 
progress during the reporting period in the development of 
qualifications. 

Table 3: Qualification development completed during 2014/15

Qualifications completed 
(DQP: EWSETA)

Status OFO Code AQP

Instrument Mechanician •  Completed 
•  Developed
•  Out for public comment

672105 National Artisan Moderation 
Body (NAMB)

Power Plant Process 
Controller (Fossil Power)

•  Developed
•  QCTO acknowledged 

submission
•  Waiting for verification 

committee

313102 EWSETA

Power Plant Process 
Controller (Hydro Power)

•  Developed
•  Out for public comment 
•  Gazetted

313103 EWSETA

Power Plant Process 
Controller (Nuclear Power)

•  Developed
•  Out for public comment 
•  Gazetted

313104 EWSETA

Water Quality Controller
(Water Quality Analyst)

•  Developed
•  Completed

213306 WISA
Awaiting approval from 
QCTO
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Table 4: Qualifications initiated during 2014 to be completed at year-end 2015

Title OFO code Specialisation Status
Fossil Power Plant 
Process Operator

313102 Fossil Power Plant 
Process Controller

•� Application received by QCTO and acknowledged 
•� Pre-scoping and scoping session conducted
•� �2015 Qualification Development Facilitator 

procurement process finalised 
•� �Development in progress to be completed by year-

end 2015
Power Plant 
Electrical 
Reticulation 
Controller

313102 Electric Substation 
Operations Manager

•� Application received by QCTO and acknowledged 
•� Pre-scoping and scoping session conducted
•� Development under consideration

Hydro Power Plant 
Process Operator

313103 Hydro Power Plant 
Process Controller

•� QCTO received and acknowledged application
•� Pre-scoping and scoping session conducted
•� �Qualification Development Facilitator procurement 

process for 2015 finalised 
•� �Development in progress to be completed by year-

end 2015
Nuclear Power Plant 
Process Operator

313104 Nuclear Power Plant 
Process Controller

•� QCTO received and acknowledged application
•� Pre-scoping and scoping session conducted
•� �Qualification Development Facilitator procurement 

process for 2015 finalised 
•� �Development in progress to be completed by year-

end 2015
Energy 
Management 
Advisor 

214105 Energy Efficiency 
Manager

•� Occupational Profile completed
•� Knowledge and practical modules completed
•� Assessment specifications being finalised
•� 90% complete - out for EWSETA public verification

Weatherisation 
Installers and 
Technicians 

313108 Energy Efficiency 
Technician

•� Occupational Profile completed
•� Knowledge and practical modules being developed
•� Assessment specifications being finalised
•� 90 % complete -out for EWSETA public verification

Table 5: Green and renewable energy qualifications initiated during 2014 for completion by year-end 2015

Qualification 
Identified 

Development

Status OFO code AQP

Power Plant 
Process Controller: 
Wind Turbine

•� �Scoping session due for 
completion by year-end 2015

•� �QDF appointment being 
finalised

313105 DQP: Application submitted to QCTO, awaiting 
feedback
EWSETA would like to secure AQP status

Industrial Water 
Controller / Operator

•� �Scoping session due for 
completion by year-end 2015

•� �QDF appointment being 
finalised

313201 DQP: Application submitted to QCTO, awaiting 
feedback

EWSETA would like to secure AQP status
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Qualification 
Identified 

Development

Status OFO code AQP

Power Plant 
Process Controller 
Photovoltaic Plant

•  Scoping session due for 
completion by year-end 2015

•  QDF appointment being 
finalised

313106 DQP: Application submitted to QCTO, awaiting 
feedback

EWSETA would like to secure AQP status
Concentrated Solar 
Power

•  Scoping session due for 
completion by year-end 2015

•  QDF appointment being 
finalised

Code 
needs 
to be re-
defined

DQP: Application submitted to QCTO, awaiting 
feedback

EWSETA would like to secure AQP status

Quality assurance policies and 
procedures

The EWSETA Quality Assurance and Compliance 
(QAC) Department has re-engineered its policies and 
procedures to provide stakeholders with a more efficient, 
effective and professional service. This initiative has 
resulted in a user-friendly Quality Management System 
(QMS) with procedures clearly mapped out for staff and 
stakeholders.

Relevant EWSETA process owners received training 
to improve their understanding of turn-around times, 
record-keeping and related auditing compliance issues 
relevant to quality assurance processes. The training 

will increase our capacity and contribute to professional 
service delivery.

The QAC and the entire EWSETA Operations Branch 
collaborated in a roadshow to four major provinces, 
namely KwaZulu-Natal, Gauteng, the Eastern Cape and 
the Western Cape to ensure visibility and build social 
capital. Presentations during the roadshows stimulated 
discussions about newly-developed policies and 
procedures and the development of qualifications.

We look forward to improved customer satisfaction and 
stakeholder recognition of the continuous improvements 
to our services and interventions in the year ahead.

Table 6: Gender profile of EWSETA moderators

Moderators Number
White male 41
White female 5
Black male 135
Black female 8
Total 189

Figure 2: Moderators registered during the 2014/15 financial year

Moderators Registered 2014/15

Total White Male Total White FemaleTotal White Male Total White Female Total Black Male Total Black Female

Table 7: Gender profile of EWSETA assessors

Moderators Number
White male 175
White female 19
Black male 135
Black female 28
Total 222

Figure 3: Assessors registered during the 2014/15 financial year.

Total White Male Total White Female Total Black Male Total Black Female

Assessors Registered 2014/15
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Table 8: Summary of Skills Development Providers (SDPs) accredited per province

Eastern Cape 

Number of SDPs accredited New applications TVET / public Rural Energy Water
4 1 1 1 3 1

Free State

Number of SDPs accredited New applications TVET / public Rural Energy Water
3 0 1 3 2 1

Gauteng

Number of SDPs accredited New applications TVET / public Rural Energy Water
21 6 2 3 17 4

KwaZulu-Natal

Number of SDPs accredited New applications TVET / public Rural Energy Water
12 2 2 2 8 4

Mpumlanga / Limpopo (in progress)

Number of SDPs accredited New applications TVET / public Rural Water
13 0 10 13 0

Western Cape

Number of SDPs accredited New applications TVET / public Rural Water
10 2 2 2 2

North West

Number of SDPs accredited New applications TVET / public Rural Water
9 4 3 4 0

Northern Cape

Number of SDPs accredited New applications TVET / public Rural Water
1 0 0 1 0

Total SDPs accredited during the 2014/15 financial year

Number of SDPs accredited New applications TVET / public Rural
New 

energy 
SDPs

Water

73 15 21 29 56 12
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Figure 4: Summary of Skills Development Providers accredited during the 2014/15 financial year.
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The Quality Assurance and Compliance Department is 
committed to providing stakeholders with professional, 
effective and efficient services. We look forward to the 

new skills development opportunities within the energy 
and water services sector and the benefits that society will 
derive from the availability of such skills.

Project Management

During the review period, the EWSETA continuously interacted 
with employers and training providers about skills development, 
including those in further education and higher learning 
institutions. The EWSETA also reviewed its resources, systems 
and processes to accelerate and improve our service delivery in 
meeting and exceeding the National Skills Development (NSDS 
III) targets.

Continuous improvement enables us to help public providers/
institutions, specifically TVET Colleges, to build capacity 
and increase their intake of learners, especially those from 
disadvantaged backgrounds who cannot afford the course 
fees. Partnering with TVET Colleges enables the EWSETA to 
contribute meaningfully as a skills development authority, meet 
our NSDS III targets and enhance the relevance and efficacy of 
our skills development interventions.

The aim of EWSETA-approved and -funded projects is to 
provide unemployed, marginalised and disabled youth and 
undergraduate learners in rural and urban communities with 
skills to support national economic priorities and address 
the need for scarce and critical skills as indicated in our SSP. 
Succeeding with these projects will contribute significantly to 
addressing unemployment, job creation and the eradication of 
poverty. 

Our newly established Project Management Department will 
facilitate the delivery of skills interventions specific to the energy 

and water services sector to help achieve our NSDS III goals. 
The key role of this new project management department is 
to oversee all EWSETA-approved and -funded projects, from 
inception to completion. The Department will collaborate with 
our Sectoral and QAC Departments to ensure that all training 
modules comply with SAQA/QCTO and training codes 
specifications.  

Close collaboration with the Sector Collaboration and 
Engagement Departments will enable the Project Management 
Department to ensure that the information received from our 
project implementers is reliable and complete. This will enhance 
the quality and quantity of the information we need to report on 
performance.  

The Department will also address challenges experienced 
previously, including:
• Aligning budget and resource allocations with the DHET 

SLA targets
• Aligning Discretionary Grant project proposal approvals 

with the EWSETA’s performance indicators and targets 
before recommending approvals 

• Aligning the approval process for Discretionary Grant 
projects with scheduled targets

• Guiding approved Discretionary Grant projects from start to 
completion to avoid dormant projects in our Commitment 
Schedule.
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These challenges have, over a number of financial years, 
created a backlog in Discretionary Grant disbursements and 
had to be reported as under-performance by the SETA.

Incomplete and/or dormant projects are a concern, since 
they hold funds that could be reallocated. During the reporting 
period, the Project Management Department identified and 
analysed the status of all dormant projects and advised the 
related implementers that the contracts had lapsed. This 
enabled the EWSETA to reallocate the funds to current projects, 
which reflected positively on our performance.

The Department also interacted proactively with stakeholders 
through, inter alia, launching a number of flagship projects. 
This created awareness among regional and local stakeholders 
about our skills development and training activities and garnered 
support for implementing projects across all levels of society.

A key achievement during the past year was the initiation of 
compulsory quarterly project status meetings between project 

implementers and our management team. The constructive, 
solution-driven and transparent manner in which project 
challenges were discussed during the meeting provided us with 
quality information for our quarterly reports to the DHET.

The results achieved by this new department indicate that the 
operational interventions are steering the EWSETA in the right 
direction to deliver on its mandate. Results included: 
• Clarity and alignment between the Commitment Schedule 

and payments 
• Improved data integrity
• Significantly improved project registration
• Improved access to information and management reports
• Efficient online submission process
• Improved quarterly reporting
• Enhanced stakeholder engagement.

Figure 5: Commitment Schedule for the 2014/15 financial year.
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Figure 6: Allocation of projects in the provinces.

Provincial projects allocation

11% Eastern Cape

3% Free State

19% Gauteng

9% KwaZulu-Natal

6% Limpopo

6% Mpumalangha

The EWSETA is mandated to respond to the principles and 
objectives of the NSDS III by aligning its skills development 
and training initiatives with:  
• National Skills Development Strategy III 

Regional Operations

• Government’s New Growth Path 
• Industrial Policy Action Plan II 
• Human Resource Development Strategy 
• National priorities



PART B:    Performance Information

46

Our activities are centred on facilitating employment 
creation and supporting economic growth by developing 
needs-specific scarce and critical skills within the 
energy and water services sector. Based on data from 
our researchers, who analyse the skills demand, trends 
and supply challenges in our sector to prioritise skills 
development needs, we identify goals and objectives 
to meet those needs. In turn, this supports the sector’s 
economic or industrial growth strategies and delivers the 
scarce and critical skills required. 

The purpose of this Department in helping the EWSETA 
give effect to its Strategic Plan is to:
• manage regional EWSETA operations
• implement, develop and ensure best practices for 

skills delivery across regions locally
• oversee the coordination of skills development 

programmes, skills advisory services, career 
guidance and work placements across regions 
to manage timing, risks, issues and resource 
requirements effectively

• give effect to our annual SLA with the DHET to 
respond to the principles and objectives of the 
NSDS III and other relevant national imperatives, 
such as the National Development Plan (NDP) and 
Strategic Integrated Projects (SIPs)

• participate in different provincial structures under 
the ambit of the Office of the Provincial Government 
Premier responsible for the province’s Human 
Resource Development Strategy, which provides 
us with a more holistic perspective of  the energy 
and water services skills needs in the different 
provinces

• participate in established DHET structures, such 
as the Provincial SETA/TVET College Cluster 
Forums. 

The previous lack of a comprehensive regional strategy 
delayed the disbursements of discretionary grants. As a 
result, poor participation by disgruntled stakeholders in 
initiatives critical to skills development and training in our 
sector affected the achievement of our DHET SLA targets.

Employees in our Head Office and regional offices are 
collaborating to decentralise the EWSETA’s activities. 
Regional capacity building remains a priority and will 
run concurrent with securing office space within TVET 
Colleges. Our developmental approach towards recruiting 
regional resources will focus on TVET College graduates 
and internship/work placement opportunities for N6 
Business Administration students to provide them with 

work-integrated learning towards their National Diploma. 
This is one of the many benefits of having a EWSETA office 
at a TVET College.  

Other benefits of our campus-based regional offices 
include walk-in career advice for TVET students interested 
in a career in the energy and water services sector. We 
also assist TVET Colleges with onsite services for, among 
others, project evaluation, assessment and monitoring.

Our regional strategy is aligned with the approved 
organisational human resource structure (as indicated on 
page 16 of this annual report) and entails:
• establishing our provincial presence in a phased 

manner, for which we clustered the provinces as 
Eastern Cape; KwaZulu-Natal; Free State and Northern 
Cape (FS/NC Cluster) and Limpopo, Mpumalanga and 
North West Province (LP/MP/NW Cluster)

• responding to the DHET call for the provincial clustering 
of SETAs, for which the EWSETA was appointed as 
lead SETA in the North West Province, where there is 
scope to collaborate with TVET Colleges 

• adopting the mandated DHET model to partner with 
TVET Colleges for office space in the provinces 

• establishing offices at the Taletso TVET College 
(Lehurhutshe Campus) and Orbit TVET College (Brits 
Campus) in the North West Province, as coordination 
hubs to connect cluster SETAs with the management 
and learners at the Colleges; the offices assist SETAs 
to establish projects, share information and provide 
students with walk-in career guidance. SETAs such 
as the Services SETA and TETA have welcomed 
our cluster offices, while the Taletso TVET College 
participated in the EWSETA stakeholder roadshows 
for the first time.

A highlight during the reporting period was the launch of 
our Western Cape Regional Office at the Westlake Campus 
of the False Bay TVET College. The office is manned by a 
regional coordinator and an intern and interaction with our 
Western Cape stakeholders is already improving.

During the 2015/16 financial year, we will open regional 
offices in the Eastern Cape, Mpumalanga and KwaZulu-
Natal. Space constraints at TVET Colleges, especially those 
in townships and rural areas, have made it difficult to find 
suitable office space. However, we remain optimistic and 
will continue to explore options for offices in the prioritised 
provinces to implement the EWSETA’s regional and 
organisational strategies.
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The mandate of the Skills Delivery Department is to 
ensure that the EWSETA’s education, training and 
development activities are aligned with the national 
priorities identified in the National Skills Development 
Strategy (NSDS III), Human Resource Development 
Strategy, National Youth Accord and New Growth Path, 
among other national frameworks and policies. This 
department also ensures that all learning programmes 
are implemented in accordance with the approved 
EWSETA Strategic plan, Sector Skills Plan and Annual 
Performance Plan. 

Although short-staffed, with only one permanent and 
two fixed-contract, junior employees, the department 
initiated 55% of the pre-determined NSDS performance 
objectives identified in the EWSETA Annual Performance 
Plan. Despite a number of unexpected challenges, the 
skills delivery team also continuously kept stakeholders 
informed about internal and external developments. 

During the year under review, EWSETA enrolled and 
reported more than 1325 unemployed learners (male and 
female) in various training and development interventions 
in the energy and water services sector. The majority 
of enrolled learners were previously disadvantaged 
youth from remote rural communities. These enrolments 
were made possible, through the collaboration of our skills 
development partners and the support of our governance 
structures, in particular the Learning Programmes 
Committee (LPC) and EWSETA’s Accounting Authority.

We also enrolled 1232 unemployed learners in various skills 
programmes and placed  424 employed learners in skills 
programmes for training. In terms of placing and training 
employed learners, we achieved less than 20% of the 
SLA target of 2 500. This was mainly because the majority 
of EWSETA stakeholders preferred enrolling employees in 
skills programmes or short learning courses rather than full 
qualification learning programmes such as learnerships.

Skills Delivery

The EWSETA did not achieve its target for placing 
TVET and HET graduates who require work-integrated 
learning within the energy and water services sector. In 
part this was due to the lack of a pro-active stakeholder 
engagement strategy to secure such placements. 
Measures, including standardised operating procedures, 
have been put in place to improve the EWSETA’s 
performance against targets in the year ahead.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

Auditor’s Report: Pre-determined 
Objectives

The Auditor-General of South Africa currently performs the 
necessary audit procedures on the EWSETA’s performance 
information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of 
an audit conclusion. 

The audit conclusion on the performance against pre-
determined objectives is included in the report to 
management, with material findings listed under the 
heading Pre-determined Objectives in the Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of the Auditor’s 
Report.

Refer to the Auditor’s Report in the Financial Information 
section of this Annual Report.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

Annual Performance Report

Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Annual 
Performance 

Target 2014/15
Achievement Varience Reasons for Variance

To compile the 
annual sector skills 
plan and drive the 
sector stakeholder 
WSP and ATR 
processes

* Accuracy and 
comprehensiveness 
of the SSP

Referencing 100% 
accurate

100%

* Timeliness of the 
SSP reporting

Submitted by 
30THApril 

No APP target not aligned 
to policy time-lines. As 
a result did not achieve 
as per target. However, 
as per DHET time-lines, 
EWSETA complied. 

* Number of WSP’s 
submitted by 
stakeholders

20% 20% 0%

* Number of ATR’s 
submitted by 
stakeholders

5% 5% 0%

To engage with and 
provide assistance 
to regional 
employers and 
employees with the 
implementation of 
skills programmes 

* Number 
of employer 
engagements per 
month

120 144 -24 A rigorous stakeholder 
engagement process 
saw an increase in 
the number of ATR's 
submitted.

* Number of 
programmes 
initiated

18 16 2 Only 16 projects were 
approved in the year 
under review due to 
affordability.

To design and 
implement internal 
and external 
quality assurance 
processes

* Number of 
public and private 
providers accredited

10 14 -4  There was a high 
demand for accreditation 
from the sector to which 
the EWSETA responded 
accordingly.

* Number of trade 
centres accredited

3 5 -2 It was necessary to re-
accredit trade centres to 
align them to the newly 
established National 
Artisan Moderation Body 
(NAMB) requirements.

* Number of 
qualifications 
reviewed

10 6 4 The focus shifted 
towards development of 
new qualifications due to 
industry demand.
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Annual 
Performance 

Target 2014/15
Achievement Varience Reasons for Variance

To design and 
implement internal 
and external 
quality assurance 
processes

* Learning material 
standardisation 
coverage

14 0 14 The learning material 
development was 
dependant on the new 
QCTO  curriculum 
development process, 
it was impossible to 
determine the exact 
budget of the material 
while the curricula was 
under development, as 
a result the requested 
quotes for the newly 
aligned material was 
priced over budgeting 
thresholds. EWSETA 
then decided to enter 
into discussion with 
other SETA's so that 
the cost for material 
development can be 
shared collectively.

* Number of 
assessors registered 

100 303 -203 The demand on training 
inititiatives, industry 
experts have commonly 
repsonded by seeking 
Assessorship. EWSETA 
has thefore experienced 
an influx of Assessor 
registration applications.

* Number of 
moderators 
registered 

100 66 34 The low number of 
moderator applications 
EWSETA could only 
respond accordingly.

* Number of 
facilitators registered

100 16 84 The low number of 
facilitator applications 
EWSETA could only 
respond accordingly.

* Number of RPL 
specialist registered

25 7 18 The low number of RPL 
Experts applications 
EWSETA could only 
respond accordinly. 
RPL experts were 
capacitated on the best 
practice model in RPL, 
however, they were not 
successfully registered.
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Annual 
Performance 

Target 2014/15
Achievement Varience Reasons for Variance

To coordinate 
and monitor 
skills delivery 
programmes 
with stakeholders 
and partners 
that convert into 
improved availability 
of skills in the 
energy and water 
sectors

* Number of 
agreements signed 
with FET colleges, 
Universities and 
other training 
providers

10 2 8 Engagements (one-
on-one sessions )
were held with relevant 
TVET Colleges. 
Generic Collaborative 
Agreements were shared 
with TVET Colleges. 
Despite our efforts they 
regretably  failed to sign 
within the period under 
review. 

* Number of 
agreements signed 
with FET colleges, 
Universities and 
other training 
providers

5 2 3 Agreement were not 
concluded due to legal 
processes that took too 
long.

* Number of 
collaborative 
agreements and co-
funded projects with 
other SETAs

5 2 3 EWSETA and other 
SETAs agreed on joint 
projects, each party 
had to fund its initiative. 
In some instances, the 
other party did not come 
on board.

* Number of 
workers entering 
learnerships

2 500 1 194 1 306 The target was set 
too high (target given 
by DHET). Based on 
EWSETA baseline 
(affordability and track 
records), the target 
has been reduced. 
However, it was meant 
to be cumulative to 
include green economy 
programmes which are 
accounted for under 
other indicators.

* Number of 
workers entering 
skills programmes

4 000 424 3 576 The target was set 
too high (target given 
by DHET). Based on 
EWSETA baseline 
(affordability and track 
records), the target has 
been reduced in the 
2015/16 APP.  
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Annual 
Performance 

Target 2014/15
Achievement Varience Reasons for Variance

To coordinate 
and monitor 
skills delivery 
programmes 
with stakeholders 
and partners 
that convert into 
improved availability 
of skills in the 
energy and water 
sectors

* Number of 
workers entering 
RPL programmes

400 37 363 The Board approved 
RPL projects which 
started with training 
of experts and policy 
development. The 
RPL'ing of learners by 
capacitated experts 
will only commence in 
2015/16.

* Number of 
workers certificated 
in learnerships

2 500 212 2 288 Percentage target was 
set at 100%. EWSETA 
was aiming to ensure 
100% completion, 
however, due to reasons 
cited under learnership 
entered, the completion 
target has been reduced 
in the 2015/16 APP.

* Number of 
workers certificated 
in skills programmes

4 000 631 3 369 Programmes entered 
in prior year, coupled 
with learner records 
from unfunded projects 
contributed.

* Number of 
workers certificated 
in RPL programmes

400 0 400 The Board approved 
RPL projects which 
started with training 
of experts and policy 
development. Only 
learners' RPL expert 
entered. 

* Number of 
unemployed 
entering 
learnerships

3 500 1 325 2 175 The target was set 
too high (target given 
by DHET). Based on 
EWSETA baseline 
(affordability and track 
records), the target 
has been reduced in 
the 2015/2016 APP. In 
addition, the delay in 
stakeholders signing of 
SLAs and the successful 
recruitment and 
registration of learners 
with EWSETA also 
affected the actual. 
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Annual 
Performance 

Target 2014/15
Achievement Varience Reasons for Variance

To coordinate 
and monitor 
skills delivery 
programmes 
with stakeholders 
and partners 
that convert into 
improved availability 
of skills in the 
energy and water 
sectors

* Number of 
unemployed 
entering internships

720 29 691  This is largely due to 
the delay in stakeholders 
signing of SLAs and 
delay in successful 
recruitment and 
registration of learners 
with EWSETA. 

* Number of 
unemployed 
entering skills 
programmes

1 500 1 232 268 This is largely due to the 
delay in stakeholders 
signing of SLAs and the 
successful recruitment 
and registration of 
learners with EWSETA.  
In addition, it was 
meant to be cumulative 
to include assessors, 
moderators, facilitators 
and green economy 
skills which are 
accounted for under 
other indicators. 

* Number of 
unemployed 
certificated in 
learnerships

3 500 643 2 857 This is largely due to the 
delay in stakeholders 
signing of SLAs and 
delay in successful 
recruitment and 
registration of learners 
with EWSETA. 

* Number of 
unemployed 
certificated in 
internships

720 0 720 This is largely due to the 
delay in stakeholders 
signing of SLAs and 
delay in successful 
recruitment and 
registration of learners 
with EWSETA. 

* Number of 
unemployed 
certificated in skills 
programmes

1 500 593 907 This is largely due to the 
delay in stakeholders 
signing of SLAs and 
delay in successful 
recruitment and 
registration of learners 
with EWSETA. 
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Annual 
Performance 

Target 2014/15
Achievement Varience Reasons for Variance

To establish and 
maintain an effective 
bursary programme

* Number of 
unemployed 
entering bursaries

850 230 620 Few bursaries were 
approved for 2014/15 
based on affordability. 
Collaborative 
agreements with 
universities and TVETs 
were not successfully 
concluded (ie. 
EWSETA signed with 
Johanesburg Central 
TVET and successfully 
have students who 
entered bursaries). 

* Number of 
unemployed 
certificated in 
bursaries

850 56 794 Few projects were 
approved in 2014/15 
based on affordability. 
Collaborative 
agreements with 
universities and TVETs 
were not succesfully 
concluded as reported 
due to under funding.

* Number of 
workers entering 
bursaries

500 0 500 This was going to 
be achieved through 
DG grants, however, 
the workers projects 
were not approved as 
contemplated.

* Number of 
workers certificated 
in bursaries

500 0 500 This was going to 
be achieved through 
DG grants, however, 
the workers projects 
were not approved as 
contemplated.

To develop and 
facilitate the 
introduction of 
green economy 
and sustainability 
programmes and 
modules

* Number of green/
sustainability 
programmes or 
modules introduced

2 3 -1 The industry demand 
became pressing for 
development of new 
qualifications. 
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Annual 
Performance 

Target 2014/15
Achievement Varience Reasons for Variance

To develop and 
facilitate the 
introduction of 
green economy 
and sustainability 
programmes and 
modules

* Number of 
unemployed 
entering green 
economy 
programmes

300 1149 -849 Through one project 
(DTCL), 1000 learners 
were reached in a 
Province (Mpumalanga). 
The project spread 
across various 
municipalities and in 
addition supporting 
various cooperatives. 

* Number of 
workers entering 
green economy 
programmes

100 0 100 EWSETA focused 
more on green skills 
for the unemployed. 
Through stakeholder 
collaboration Employers 
will be targeted, there 
will be more advocacy 
campaigns on green 
economy learning 
programmes.

* Number 
of workers 
certificated in green 
programmes

100 0 100 EWSETA benefited more 
from Industry unfunded 
projects.

* Number of 
unemployed 
certificated in green 
programmes

300 0 300 Project only commenced 
in the last quarter and 
therefore affected 
completion.

To facilitate 
increased artisans 
skills capacity within 
the energy and 
water sectors

* Number of 
artisans entering 
programmes

2 000 270 1 730 For EWSETA to 
successfully achieve 
this intervention, 
requires much more 
stringent stakeholder 
collaboration and 
adequate funding.

* Number of artisans 
certificated 

2 000 417 1 583 Same as above. More 
engagement with 
stakeholders on artisans 
development will assist 
EWSETA both in entry 
and completions.
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Annual 
Performance 

Target 2014/15
Achievement Varience Reasons for Variance

To facilitate the 
placement of 
students and 
lecturers requiring 
work integrated 
learning in industry

* Number of N3, N6 
and NCV(L4) FET 
graduates requiring 
work integrated 
learning placed in the 
relevant sector

500 169 331 The availability of 
workplaces for work 
integrated learning 
placement remains a 
challenge. 

* Number of 
University of 
Technology students 
requiring work 
integrated learning 
placed in the relevant 
sector

200 37 163 The availability of 
workplaces for work 
integrated learning 
placement remains a 
challenge. 

* Number of lecturers 
placed in industry

90 0 90 The delay of stakeholder's 
implementation of funded 
project, the target could 
not be met.

To manage and 
deliver discretionary 
projects approved by 
the Board

* Number of cross-
sectoral projects

4 4 0 More potential for cross-
sectoral were presented.

* Number of 
cooperatives 
supported

15 33 -18 The EWSETA entered 
into a partnership with a 
network of cooperatives 
which enabled the SETA 
to support a higher 
number of cooperatives. 

* Number of small 
business supported

4 9 -5 The EWSETA entered into 
a partnership with a one 
SMME which enabled the 
SETA to support a higher 
number of SMMEs. 

* Number of NGO’s 
supported

6 4 2 Only four NGO projects 
were approved due to 
affordability.

* Number of NLPE’s 
supported

0 0 0

To manage and 
deliver discretionary 
projects approved by 
the Board

* Number of CBO’s 
supported

5 2 3 This is largely due to the 
delay in stakeholders 
signing of SLAs and delay 
in successful recruitment 
and registration of 
learners with EWSETA. 
In addition, This project 
since it includes 
government department, 
also severely affected 
by the SCM process 
for the recruitment of 
implementation agent. 
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Annual 
Performance 

Target 2014/15
Achievement Varience Reasons for Variance

To manage and 
deliver discretionary 
projects approved by 
the Board

* Number of worker 
initiated programmes 
supported

4 0 4 This is largely due to the 
delay in stakeholders 
signing of the SLAs 
and delay in successful 
recruitment and 
registration of learners 
with EWSETA. The project 
referred will not have 
assisted the EWSETA 
to successfully achieve 
target, however, would 
have improved the level of 
performance. 

* Number of 
new qualification 
developed

1 1

*  Accuracy, 
currency and 
comprehensiveness 
of a sector database 
to track training and 
work opportunities 
and report on 
implementation

Impact analysis not 
conducted.

To improve the 
level of literacy and 
numeracy in youth

* Number of people 
entering AET 
programmes 

100 0 100 This was going to 
be achieved through 
DG grants, however, 
the workers projects 
were not approved as 
contemplated.

* Number of people 
being certified in AET 
programmes  

100 0 100 This was going to 
be achieved through 
DG grants, however, 
the workers projects 
were not approved as 
contemplated.

* Negative sign means actual is more than what was targeted
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Corporate 
Governance

Introduction

The EWSETA is committed to sound Corporate Governance 
Principles and is primarily guided by generally accepted 
Corporate Governance Practices, in particular the Code of 
Corporate Practices and Conduct set out in the King Report 
(“King III”) as well as Protocol on Corporate Governance in 
the Public Sector. These practices seek to ensure that the 
EWSETA’s mandate is fulfilled with due consideration given 
to responsible decision-making, accountability, effective 
and ethical leadership, as well as fairness and transparency 
whilst monitoring performance and compliance with 
statutory requirements. 

In terms of the PFMA, the EWSETA is classified under 
Schedule 3 as a Provincial Public Entity. The Minister 
of Higher Education and Training is the Executive 
Authority of the EWSETA and the EWSETA Board is the 
Accounting Authority. During the year under review the 
EWSETA Accounting Authority executed its oversight and 
governance role successfully.

Accounting Authority composition and 
responsibilities

The Accounting Authority consists of 14 members and a 
non-executive Chairperson. During the reporting period, 
two members and the Chairperson resigned from the 
Board.

The Accounting Authority meets quarterly in a financial year 
to perform its role as the accounting authority and offer 
oversight and support to the Executive Management of 
EWSETA.

The focus of the Accounting Authority is on governance 
and strategic direction of the EWSETA.

Performance is managed in terms of the annually signed 
Service Level Agreement (SLA) between the Department of 
Higher Education and Training and the EWSETA, which is 
based on the NSDS III deliverables.



PART C:    Governance

60

Accounting Authority functional 
committees

The Accounting Authority established several functional 
committees to support its activities and provide governance 
oversight.

Each sub-committee operates within a specified scope 
and is chaired by an Accounting Authority member with the 
exception of the Audit and Risk Committee, which needs to 
be independent. 

Executive Committee 

The committee is chaired by the Accounting Authority 
and consists of three Accounting Authority members. 
The position of Chairperson is currently vacant due to the 
resignation of Mr Zokwana and Ms Ansie Botha resigned at 
the end of October 2014.

The sub-committee met seven times during the past 
financial year and is responsible for strategic support and 
corporate governance oversight. 

Audit and Risk Committee

This committee is chaired by Mr Rapoo and consists of 
two independent members and two Accounting Authority 
members.

During the year under review the ARC met six times and it 
was effective and functional.

Human Resources and Remuneration 
Committee

This committee is chaired by the acting Chairperson, 
Mr Besnaar, as the substantive Chairperson. Ms Botha 
resigned at the end of October 2014. The committee 
consists of three Accounting Authority members and two 
independent members.

The HRRC met four times during the year under review and 
is tasked with the oversight and support of human resource 
management and development, as well as monitoring 
compliance with laws and regulations.

Finance Committee

This committee is chaired by Mr Swanepoel and consists of 
four Accounting Authority members.

The FinComm met three times during the year under review 
and is tasked with financial administration and internal 
control oversight, as well as monitoring compliance with 
laws and regulations. 

Skills Planning Committee

This committee is chaired by Mr Sera and consists of four 
independent members.

The SPC met three times during the year under review and 
is tasked with facilitating research that relates to the energy 
and water services sector as input into the Sector Skills 
Plan.

Learning Programmes Committee

This committee is chaired by Mr Sekano and consists of 
five independent members.

The LPC met four times during the year under review and 
is tasked with ensuring the development, management 
and implementation of an effective and efficient learnership 
system for the EWSETA. 

Quality Assurance and Compliance 
Committee

This committee is chaired by Mr Moodley and consists of 
six independent members.

The QACC met twice during the year under review and is 
tasked with ensuring the effectiveness and efficiency of the 
EWSETA’s quality assurance functions and that the entity 
fulfils its obligation as an ETQA in terms of the SAQA Act, 
58 of 1995. 
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Attendance matrix for Accounting Authority meetings for the 2014/15 financial year

Accounting Authority meetings Meeting dates
29/5/14 22/8/14 19/11/14 27/3/15

Senzeni Zokwana (Chair) AP Resigned
Tebogo Phadu AP AP AP P
Olebogeng Besnaar P P P P
Ravi Moodley P P AP P
Mpilo Mbambisa AP AP AP AP
Knox Msebenzi P AP P P
Benedict Mogadime AP Resigned
Petunia Ramunenyiwa P P P P
Tshimane Montoedi AP P AP P
Ansie Botha AP P Resigned
Stephen Nhlapo P P P P
Justice Sera P P P P
Keith Swanepoel P P P P
Mercy Sekano P P P P

Keys:  AP = apology received; 
 P = present

Accounting Authority remuneration

The Minister of Higher Education and Training and the 
Minister of Finance determine the remuneration structure 
of the non-executive Accounting Authority members and 
Accounting Authority committee members. During the 
period under review, the non-executive members and 
committee members were remunerated in accordance with 
the rates stipulated by National Treasury.

Induction and training

As the demands and responsibilities of Accounting Authorities 
increase, members are challenged to keep their knowledge and 
expertise up to date and relevant for their current duties. The 
EWSETA Accounting Authority remains committed to being 
well-informed about the entity’s existing and future governance 
obligations. Training programmes that address their information 
needs will be pursued in the new financial year.  

Accounting Authority evaluation

Accounting Authorities need to continuously monitor 
and improve their performance. Evaluation is a powerful 

tool and valuable feedback mechanism for improving 
effectiveness, maximising strengths and identifying areas 
for future development. Regular evaluations can pinpoint 
weaknesses, confirm processes, identify training needs 
and improve the interaction and communication among 
members. 

During the next review period, an external facilitator will 
evaluate the EWSETA Accounting Authority and its sub-
committees to ensure that the evaluation process is 
rigorous and impartial.

Company secretarial function

The Company Secretary is responsible for developing and 
maintaining the procedures and processes required for the 
proper administration of the Accounting Authority and its 
sub-committees. The Company Secretary ensures that 
procedures are complied with and advise members on 
governance matters.
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Report by the Corporate 
Services Executive

The role of the EWSETA Corporate Services Department 
is to consolidate and coordinate the organisation’s Human 
Resource, Information and Communications Technology 
(ICT) and Marketing and Communication services. During 
the reporting period, the Corporate Services Executive 
also acted as caretaker of the Sectoral Collaboration and 
Stakeholder Engagement Branch.

Our focus has been on optimising performance, productivity 
and cost-efficiency to ensure that administrative and 
operational processes comply with governance principles. 
This enables us to meet internal and external stakeholder 
needs and respond effectively to the NSDS III strategic 
outcome goals. 

During the reporting period, the EWSETA’s corporate 
services branch made significant progress in achieving 
most of its key objectives.

Good overall progress

Building long-term capacity to match organisational growth 
goals is important.  Our focus in this regard has been on 
placing the right people in the right positions within Corporate 
Services and the rest of the organisation. We concluded 
the staff matching and placing process in line with our 
phased approach to staff recruitment and addressed staff 
concerns, when necessary. All management positions were 
filled during the previous fiscal and a number of employees 
below management level were appointed during the past 
year. Despite some progress, budget constraints hampered 
the recruitment process and we look forward to finalizing 
the process during the year ahead, since appointments in 
specialist positions are urgent, especially in the renewable 
energy and oil and gas sectors.

In response to a call by the Honourable Minister Dr Blade 
Nzimande to open workplaces for interns, the EWSETA 
successfully absorbed an initial cohort of interns as 
temporary contractors. In this regard, we placed interns 
from the False Bay TVET College in our newly opened 
Western Cape regional office to support the regional 
coordinator.

Our mandate is to anticipate, build 
and manage the skills development 
and training needs of the Energy and 
Water Services Sector through strategic 
skills planning within the context of the 
National Skills Development Strategy 
(NSDS III).

– EWSETA mandate
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The EWSETA’s first sophisticated Performance 
Management System (PMS) came on line with the 
assistance of an external service provider. The Human 
Resources (HR) Manager and team were pivotal to 
the process, which included consultation with internal 
and external stakeholders and the rollout, internally, 
of a change management plan to reinforce the need 
for self- and work performance improvement among 
staff. Despite the long journey that preceded the 
implementation, staff have been responding well to 
the PMS. The engagement with staff in this regard is 
ongoing to ensure that the use of PMS becomes fully 
entrenched throughout the organisation.  

Interviews for permanent placements in the Chief 
Financial Officer and Chief Operations Officer positions 
were conducted and the announcement from the 
Accounting Authority of the successful candidates is 
imminent. We commend the managers who acted in 
these two Executive positions for their leadership and 
contribution to stabilising the respective functions to 
support the EWSETA in fulfilling its mandate. 

A highlight during the past year was the opening of the 
EWSETA’s first regional office at the Westlake Campus 
of the False Bay TVET College in the Western Cape. 
Our presence in the Western Cape enables us to 
improve our services to stakeholders in the area and is 
a first step in the EWSETA’s strategic intention to open 
more regional offices in next financial year. 

During the reporting period, we upgraded the 
VIP payroll system, implemented the VIP Human 
Resources module and granted administrator rights to 
our ICT Department. The highlight of the changes was 
the creation of the first EWSETA Employment Equity 
(EE) Committee and the submission of the annual EE 
report for 2015.

Human Resources

Our Human Resources focus during the past year has 
been on optimising our staff complement since budget 
constraints impeded our ability to recruit staff. The 
following tables depict staff levels in terms of gender 
at the end of the past financial year.

Employee representivity as at 31 March 2015

Occupational groups Headcount %
African 51 89
Coloured 3 5.4
Indian 2 3.6
White 0 0
Disability 0 0
Foreign national 1 1.8
Total 57 100

Male Count %
African 18 85.71
Coloured 2 9.52
Indian 1 4.77
White 0 0
Disability 0 0
Foreign national 0 0
Total 21 100

Female Count %
African 33 91.67
Coloured 1 2.78
Indian 1 2.78
White 0 0
Disability 0 0
Foreign national 1 2.78
Total 36 100

Recruitment 

• 27 vacancies were advertised during the past financial 
year.

• At least 3 000 applications were received during 
September 2015.

• Two posts at Executive level will be filled by the mid-
2015/16 fiscal and the rest of the vacant positions on 
a gradual basis pending budget availability.  

Administering compensation

The recent upgrade of the EWSETA VIP payroll, combined 
with the Human Resources electronic system, will 
seamlessly integrate information and improve data integrity 
to ensure that payments are done accurately. 
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Employment equity

Table 9: EWSETA workforce profiles as at 31 March 2015

Occupational levels
Male Female

Foreign Nationals

To
ta

l

Male Female
A C I W A C I W A C I W A C I W

Top management 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Senior management 10 1 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 15
Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists and  
mid-management

1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Skilled technical and  
academically-qualified workers, 
junior management, supervisors,
foremen and superintendents

0 0 0 0 10 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11

Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision-making

0 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Unskilled and defined  
decision-making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total permanent 11 2 1 0 17 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
Temporary employees 8 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23
Grand total 19 2 1 0 32 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 57

Table 10:  Employee representivity at financial year-end 
2014/15

Occupational groups Headcount %
African 51 89
Coloured 3 5.2
Indian 2 3.6
White 0 0
Disability 0 0
Foreign nationals 1 1.7
Total staff 57 100

Table 11: Employee occupational categories 

Occupational categories Current %
Top management 3.5
Senior management 25
Professionally-qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management

5.3

Skilled technical and Academically-qualified 
workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foremen, and superintendents

19

Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision-making

5.3

Unskilled and defined decision making 0
Total permanent 58
Temporary employees 52
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Areas of under-representivity

The under-representivity of people with disabilities across 
all occupational levels and categories, particularly from 
designated groups, is a challenge and will receive attention 
in the year ahead. Increasing the number of employees in 
specialised fields and with scarce skills, such as artisans, 
electricity specialists and gas and oil specialists, will also be 
given attention.

Equitable gender representivity

The EWSETA’s staff complement is female-dominated, with 
61% women across all occupational categories except in 
management, while the dominant racial group is African. 
Our employment equity plan is informed by the country’s 
demographics and economically active population, as well 
the revised minimum targets for the Public Service and our 
workforce profile in January 2014. The implementation of 
the plan will ensure that we achieve gender and race equity.
Our representivity targets across all occupational levels and 
categories are indicated in the table below.

Table 12: Representivity targets across all occupational 
levels and categories 

Occupational         
categories 

Current % Target %

Top management 3.5 5.2
Senior management 27 0
Professionally-qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management

5.2 38

Skilled technical and
Academically-qualified 
workers,junior 
management, 
supervisors, foremen 
and superintendents

2 19

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary
Decision-making

5.2 10

Unskilled and defined 
decision-making

0 0

Total permanent 42.9 72.2

Measures to achieve representivity

The EWSETA will achieve its representivity targets by 
filling vacant posts during the forthcoming financial year. 
The Human Resources Department, in conjunction with 
relevant role players, will also develop and facilitate the 
implementation of a strategy to accelerate the achievement 
of the disability representivity target. Implementation will 
focus on recruiting and developing persons with a disability 
and putting measures in place to ensure accessibility 
to EWSETA premises and facilities. Departmental EE 
representatives will submit quarterly reports to the EE 
Committee to monitor our progress in achieving this target.
In addition, our different departments will develop pools of 
suitably qualified candidates by offering full-time bursaries 
in relevant fields and making use of interns, to address 
under-representivity.

Performance rewards

During the reporting period, we implemented a performance 
management system that will be used to evaluate 
performance in the new financial year. All employees have 
been trained to use this system and will, in due course, 
undergo performance evaluation training. One employee 
at top management level was rewarded for performance 
during the past year.

Human Resources overview

The table below reflects  the main activities of the Human 
Resources Department for the 2014/15 financial period.
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Table 13: Overview of main Human Resources activities during review period

Deliverables Status Comments
HR policies and
procedures

Implemented Four policies were developed during the past financial period, namely for Human 
Resource Development, Interns, Employee Wellness and Gender. These policies 
are at a review stage for consideration by the HRRC and the Accounting Authority.

Induction and
orientation

Implemented A new employee induction programme was developed, aligned with the EWSETA 
Strategy and Annual Performance Plan, as well as legislation applicable to the 
SETA and its Human Resource policies. The first induction of new employees took 
place in Cape Town for interns and a Regional Coordinator.

Organisational 
strategy session

Implemented An organisational strategy session was held in August 2014. The outcomes will be 
monitored to assess achievement against intended purpose.

Staff recruitment Implemented Staff recruitment remains a challenge. The challenges range from budgetary 
constraints to issues of matching and placing. Due to the effect of matching and 
placing on recruitment, the process was placed on hold until these challenges 
were resolved.

Performance 
management 

Implemented The EWSETA partnered with Scientrix to implement performance management 
during the financial period. A performance matrix was developed for the entire 
organisation.

Personnel costs by salary band

Currently the EWSETA has a staff compliment of 57, including contracted staff on contract. The personnel costs by salary band 
are reflected in the table below.

Table 14: Personnel costs by salary band

Level
Personnel

expenditure
(R’000)

% of personnel
expenditure to total 

personnel cost
No of staff

Average personnel 
cost per employee

(R’000)

Top management 2 619 11.22 2 1 310

Senior management 10 992 47.09 15 733

Professionally-qualified 1 287 5.5 3 429

Skilled 3 712 15.90 11 337 

Semi-skilled(includes 
staff on contract) 

635 2.72 3 212 

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

Temporary employees 4 065 17.41 23 177

Leave payments 28 0.11 3 9 

Total 23 338 3 206 430.77
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Training costs

Budget constraints affected the extent of employee training during the past financial period. Funds have been allocated to 
increase the amount of training in the year ahead.

Table 15: Training costs

Business
Unit

Personnel
expenditure

(R’000)

Training
expenditure

(R’000)

Training
expenditure as a 
%of personnel

costs

No of
employees

trained

Average training
cost per 

employee
(R’000)

Bursaries 26 717 66 0.24 6 11
External training 26 717 123 0.45 18 7
Workshops 26 717 7 0.02 3 2

Employment and vacancies

At the end of the 2014/15 financial year was, due mainly to budget constraints, the vacancy rate at the EWSETA was 66%. 
We will implement a phased recruitment process during the forthcoming financial year to fill the vacant positions and normalise 
the situation.

Table 16: Employment and vacancies for the past three financial years

Programme
2012/2013
Number of

staff

2013/2014
approved

posts

2013/2014
Number of

staff

2014/2015
Vacancies

% Vacancies

Executive 2 2 5 (2 Acting) 3 5.26
Senior
management

4 12 13 0 0

Professionals 9 40 5 35 61.40
Administration 11 22 11 11 19.30
Semi-skilled 20 11 20 8 14.04

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0
Total 45 87 54 57 100

Information and Communications 
Technology – the right people, processes 
and technology

Considerable strides were taken during the past year in the 
EWSETA’s Information and Communications Technology (ICT) 
environment with the development of a best practice ICT model 
for the SETA and our clients. 

We implemented the Accounting Authority-approved ICT 
Master Plan to integrate all ICT processes. This included a 
review of the related policies and procedures in line with audit 

recommendations (Accounting Authority-approved policies are 
listed below). Compliance with the policies will help the EWSETA 
to create a secure, reliable and efficient ICT environment. 

The Accounting Authority-approved ICT 
policies implemented during the 2014/15 
financial year

• Information System Security Policy
• Change Management Policy
• User Access Policy
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• Anti-Virus Policy
• Firewall Management Policy
• Patch Management Policy
• Acceptable USE Policy
• Access and Remote Access Security Policy
• Email and Internet Policy
• Mobile Computing Policy
• IT Server Room Access Policy
• Password Policy

We will present the Accounting Authority with an ICT 
governance framework for approval in the new financial 
year to guide our responses to all ICT-related matters. 

We also strengthened our ICT governance practices and 
established an ICT Steering Committee to interact with 
the Accounting Authority’s Governance and Strategy 
sub-committee. While employees were trained to use 
most of the MIS modules, training continues in modules 
such as finance. The entire system will be fully functional 
once all training has been completed. Staff training in 
the use of the mandatory grants and quality assurance 
modules has improved the ability of employees to assist 
stakeholders more effectively. 

During the past year, we also migrated completely to an 
electronic record management system to move towards 
a secure, paperless environment and substantially 
improved reporting performance. Documents are now 
readily and securely available online from anywhere in 
the organisation.

Our business continuity and disaster recovery plans are 
in place and we have activated the back-up recovery 
plan, which is critical for all business applications 
and data. We procured new printers to resolve the 
certification backlog and can report significant progress 
in this regard. While under-resourcing remains a 
challenge, the Department is optimistic that adequate 
funds for recruitment will become available during the 
forthcoming financial year.

The ICT manager is also responsible for facilities 
management, such as improved signage, maintenance 
and the installation of motion detection cameras. 
Branding, as well as networking and communications 
functionality were installed at the newly established 
regional office in the Western Cape, as an extension of 
the Gauteng Head Office to ensure that staff can work 
and communicate.  

Improving organisational efficiency to 
meet budget requirements 

The EWSETA’s continued focus on reviewing and 
upgrading organisational systems and processes in all its 
departments during the past year, as well as prioritising 
strategic initiatives, contributed significantly to a healthy, 
commitment-driven and positive work environment. 

Strengthening the brand – stakeholder 
communication 

Following the EWSETA’s internally-driven focus during its 
restructuring in 2013/14, our focus during the reporting 
period has been outwards to reposition and strengthen 
brand awareness by providing stakeholders with information 
about our progress and achievements. 

Our marketing, advertising and communication campaigns 
included frequent media releases, a new website with 
regular updates and a new corporate profile to position and 
differentiate the EWSETA in its marketplace and articulate 
our value proposition to our different target audiences. The 
active positioning of the CEO positively influenced negative 
stakeholder perceptions about the EWSETA and SETAs 
in general. Feedback has been constructive and these 
campaigns will continue during the forthcoming financial 
year. 

The EWSETA always seeks ways to create awareness about 
careers in the energy and water services sector. During the 
past financial year, we attended career expos in all nine 
provinces to inform those unemployed and the youth about 
career opportunities, critical skills needed for the sector and 
the skills and experience that employers require.

Other initiatives included stakeholder events such as the 
successful Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Gala Dinner 
in Johannesburg and for the first time, a regional AGM in 
the Western Cape. 

At the Johannesburg AGM, EWSETA-commissioned 
research reports from the Universities of Stellenbosch and 
Johannesburg on Renewable Energy Career Pathways 
and Predictions and Eastern Cape Micro-Generation, 
respectively, were handed to the Deputy Minister of the 
DHET. He commended the SETA for its research strategy 
and leading skills development research for the sector.
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During the regional AGM, stakeholders raised a number of 
concerns that will help us to improve service interventions 
in the Western Cape.

In August 2014, we launched the Renewable Centre of 
Excellence (RECE) in Upington in the Northern Cape. The 
launch supported the objective in our Annual Performance 
Plan to develop and facilitate the introduction of the Green 
Economy and sustainability modules. We expect the 
Centre to become a leader in solar energy skills training 
and certification, while the Green Economy is expected to 
address the high rate of unemployment and simultaneously 
reduce the country’s carbon footprint. 

Project launches during the past year included the launch 
of construction of the RECE building, a landmark event 
for the EWSETA. We partnered with the Northern Cape 
Provincial Government and secured the support of three 
government ministers for the RECE Project. We hope to 
invite the ministers to view the completed building in the 
forthcoming financial year.

Since stakeholder engagement is integral to the EWSETA’s 
ability to understand and respond effectively to stakeholder 
concerns, we held the first Skills Summit in Saldanha Bay 
in March 2015. The purpose was to identify skills needs 
in the community and the availability of artisans for the 
new industries envisaged for the Saldanha Bay Industrial 
Development Zone (IDZ).  

The summit supported our Annual Performance Plan 
objective of facilitating an increase in artisan skills and 
capacity within the energy and water services sector. The 
event theme of ‘A journey towards Skills Development for 
gainful employment in the West Coast’ spurred robust 
discussion and consultation with stakeholders about 
the skills needed for the Saldanha Bay IDZ, as well as 
implementing skills development and training programmes 
to empower unemployed youth on the West Coast.

We were the first SETA to take Operation Phakisa ocean 
economy issues and information about the Saldanha Bay 
IDZ development to the community. The two-day summit 
was well attended and delivered a five-point action plan 
that will be championed by the EWSETA CEO.

In a project with the Motheo TVET College in the Free State 
to improve the operation and maintenance of water-related 
infrastructure, we trained 553 process controllers to work 
in various municipalities, particularly those in the rural areas 

of the province. Key stakeholders attended the launch at 
the Motheo Hillside Campus of the College in March 2015. 

The training focused on the operation and maintenance 
of waste and water-related infrastructure within the Free 
State Water Service Authorities. The trained process 
controllers will improve municipal service delivery, especially 
in rural areas. Consideration is currently being given to 
implementing similar projects throughout the country.

The DHET Deputy Minister attended the event, which 
confirmed the support from national government for such 
initiatives. We appreciate the confidence shown in the 
EWSETA as a result of our progress as an organisation over 
the past two years. 

We used the staff organisational strategic session to further 
improve relationships within the organisation and believe 
that we have laid the foundation for a stronger and more 
efficient and effective EWSETA going forward. 
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Following the EWSETA’s restructuring, our focus has been 
on strengthening relationships with various players in the 
energy and water services sector to facilitate collaboration 
between the relevant stakeholders.

Sectoral Collaboration and Stakeholder Engagement is a 
new branch within the EWSETA. This function will help us 
to optimise collaboration and engagement opportunities 
and in so doing, strengthen our stakeholder relationships. 
We will now also develop stakeholder and sector-specific 
objectives, such as lobbying and advocating for alternative 
sources of revenue. 

As one of the smaller SETAs, we do not have access to 
a large budget to implement some of the sector initiatives 
that we are passionate about. This new branch will improve 
our ability to source additional funds and support our efforts 
to improve stakeholder sentiment towards the EWSETA. 
Our increased participation in sector forums will be taken 
more seriously and add value to our contributions to skills 
development in our sector.

In addition, we can assist the EWSETA CEO with 
international stakeholder collaboration. Recent international 
missions enabled the EWSETA to capitalise on learning 
from international best practice, sharing R&D expertise and 
sourcing funding for exchange programmes and technical 
innovations. International partners are becoming involved 
in local projects with universities, TVET Colleges and 
employers. We look forward to seeing the benefits of these 
partnerships in the next financial year.

The appointment of a permanent Executive for this branch 
will enable the EWSETA to strategically make our mark in 
the energy and water services sector.

Energy Department

The key strategic energy sub-sectors are:

Electricity (generation, transmission and distribution)

This sub-sector enhances the collaboration and partnership 
with all stakeholders, particularly Eskom as the main 
energy utility producer. The current load-shedding and long 

Sectoral Collaboration and Stakeholder Engagement

construction time-frames for the Medupi and Kusile power 
stations require vibrant skills development solutions and 
engagements.

Oil and Gas

The EWSETA needs to engage vigorously with this sub-
sector given the confusion about which SETA to align 
it with.  Our first successful engagement was the Skills 
Summit in Saldanha Bay. We will also be a key role player 
in the roll-out of Operation Phakisa’s Ocean Economy pillar.  

Nuclear

The Nuclear New Build Programme is a reality and 
engagement, internationally and locally, is underway with 
role players in this subsector.

Renewable Energy (Green Economy)

As defined by the UN Environment Programme, the 
Green Economy is “one that results in improved human 
well-being and social risks and ecological scarcities”. In 
response to the call for the development of ‘Green Skills’ 
as a national imperative, the EWSETA – in conjunction with 
key role players such as government departments, TVET 
Colleges, HETs and International institutions – launched 
the Renewable Energy Centre of Excellence (RECE) in 
Upington, Northern Cape. We have identified stakeholders 
for further engagement in this sub-sector since renewable 
energy is the country’s transition to a green economy for 
sustainable development.

Water Services Sector Department

The Water Services Sector Department facilitates 
collaboration between stakeholders, the sub-sector and our 
internal functions. The Departments purpose is to optimise 
stakeholder engagement, collaboration and satisfaction by 
collecting and interpreting the latest water sector trends, 
leveraging available data and engaging with our Operations 
Branch to deliver best practice skills solutions. 

The EWSETA engages stakeholders at various levels to 
discuss a number of issues. In the water sector, we are 
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active in the Water Sector Leadership Group (WSLG) and 
represented in the Quality Assurance and Skills Planning 
Working Groups. This enhances communication with and 
participation by sector role players in skills planning and 
quality matters, which improves the credibility and veracity 
of the Sector Skills Plan. The Department of Water and 
Sanitation (DWS) leads the WSLG.

The EWSETA also participated in the 2014 Biennial 
Conference of the Water Institute of Southern Africa (WISA), 
held in Mpumalanga in May 2014. We presented the 
research findings from a project completed in partnership 
with the Stellenbosch University Water Institute (SUWI) and 
manned an exhibition stall at the event.

Feeding into the research of the sector is critical to the 
organisation. A highlight for the Water Sector Department 
during the past year was the handing over of the 
Stellenbosch University Water Institute’s Phase 1 Research 
Report: An Educational Needs Analysis of Technical and 
Vocational Education and Training College Lecturers in the 
South African Water Sector to the Deputy Minister of Higher 
Education and Training at the EWSETA Annual General 
Meeting.  

The key findings of the report are important to note. These 
include a scarcity of Water and Wastewater Treatment 
(WWT), Process Plant Operations (PPO) and Chemical 
Plant Operations (CPO) courses locally at public and private 
colleges, a disparity between skills ranked as important in 
WSPs, such as newly graduated Process Controllers on 
Water and Wastewater Treatment Works, and the emphasis 
placed on these skills by TVET College lecturers and a lack 
of experience and/or qualifications among TVET College 
lecturers teaching these courses.  

There is still much to do for the EWSETA in terms of 
sector collaboration and stakeholder engagement. The 
appointment of a permanent Executive for this branch will 
enable us to play a more strategic and prominent role in the 
energy and water services sector. Until such time we will 
continue in a focused manner to implement a strategy that 
is both inward and outward focused.

The year ahead

There is no doubt that the activities and achievements 
within Corporate Services during the past year contributed 
in a meaningful way to the good progress made in fulfilling 
the EWSETA’s mandate for the energy and water services 
sector. The challenges that remain will have been prioritised 
for attention in the year ahead. We look forward to scaling 
ever greater heights in helping the SETA deliver against its 
key performance indicators. 

Ms Candice Moodley
Corporate Services Executive
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 
(EWSETA)
August 2015
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 Statement of 

Responsibility for 
the Annual Financial 
Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation 
of the public entity’s annual financial statements and for the 
judgements made in this information.

The Accounting Authority is also responsible for establishing 
and implementing a system of internal controls designed to 
provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of 
the annual financial statements.

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly reflect the operations 
of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2015. 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 
opinion on the Annual Financial Statements (AFS) of the public 
entity. 

The EWSETA’s annual financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2015 have been audited by the external auditors and 
their report is presented on page 79.

The Annual Financial Statements of the public entity, as set out 
on pages 86 to 133, have been approved.

Mr Errol Gradwell
Chief Executive Officer
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 
(EWSETA)
August 2015

Mr Olebogeng Besnaar
Chairperson (Interim)
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 
(EWSETA)
August 2015



We are pleased to present our report for the year ended 
31 March 2015 as follows:

Audit and Risk Members and attendance

The Audit and Risk Committee (The Committee) 
consists of three independent members and two other 
members who are non-executive members of the 
EWSETA Accounting Authority nominated as such by 
the Accounting Authority.  The Committee is required 
to meet at least four times a year in terms of its 
approved terms of reference or Charter. The quorum 
for meetings is a majority of members present. The 
members of the Committee for the year are as outlined 
below in conjunction with their respective attendance of 
meetings held.

During the year under review the Committee held seven 
meetings as follows:                
                                                                                                                                                                                                           

Name of member                                                              
Number of meetings

Attended
Mr. J R Rapoo 
(Chairperson) 

7

Ms. M Strydom 7
Ms. S Thomas  6
Mr. K Swanepoel 4
Ms. P Ramunenyiwa 4

 
                                              

Responsibilities of the Audit and Risk 
Committee

The Committee reports that it has discharged its 
responsibilities as prescribed in the PFMA, Act 1 of 
1999 as amended and Treasury Regulations 27.1.8 and 
27.1.10(b) and (c).

Report by the Audit and 
Risk Committee
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The Committee has also adopted formal terms of reference as its Charter and has regulated its affairs in compliance 
with its prescripts. The Charter is reviewed annually and approved by the Accounting Authority.

Effectiveness of Internal control and Internal Audit

The EWSETA system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable assurance, inter alia, that assets are 
safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are managed efficiently in the ordinary course of business. 

Assurance on the appropriateness and effectiveness of control systems in operation is provided by an independent 
internal audit function, which conducts its duties in terms of an approved internal audit Charter which is also subject 
to review on an annual basis. The internal audit function follows a risk-based audit approach based on the EWSETA 
Risk Register as assessed and updated by management from time to time. The internal audit Plan flowing from this 
approach was formally adopted and approved by the Committee.

Based on reports and findings including recommendations on suggested improvements by both the internal audit 
function, read together with responses by management and their planned corrective actions for weaknesses identified 
in the process, the Committee is satisfied that the internal control systems of the EWSETA functioned adequately for 
the year under review except in some specific instances as fully outlined in the final management report of the Auditor-
General. The Committee will monitor the implementation of action plans designed by management in response to the 
said findings.

As a result of the departure of the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Operating Officer during the course of the 
preceding financial year these key positions were filled in acting capacities throughout the year under review as 
permanent appointments are still to be made. It is for this reason that the Committee increased the frequency of their 
meetings to provide oversight, support and assurance to the Accounting Authority.

Monthly and in-year Management Reporting

The Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the Accounting 
Authority of the EWSETA during the year under review.

Risk Strategy

The EWSETA has established a fully-fledged Risk Management Department to drive the enterprise risk management strategy. 
A comprehensive risk register is in place and reviewed by management on a monthly basis to ensure that risk mitigation 
controls are effective and emerging risks are identified and responded to timeously. In line with its charter the Committee will 
review reports arising from these processes at each of its meetings in order to:  
• Exercise oversight in respect of the enterprise risk management function, which remains management’s responsibility.
• Monitor implementation of the entity’s risk management action plans and make recommendations regarding improvement 

and reporting thereon.
• To review, and where necessary, have the approved internal audit plan adapted accordingly.
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Evaluation of the Annual Financial Statements and the Report on Pre-determined Objectives

The Committee has:
• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements and the report of performance against pre-determined 

objectives with the AGSA and management
• Reviewed the AGSA management report inclusive of the responses of management to findings contained therein
• Reviewed the EWSETA compliance with legal and regulatory provisions based on findings by the AGSA and internal audit
• Reviewed changes in accounting policies and procedures, and
• Noted that certain adjustments were effected as a result of the audit process
• Based on the reviews and discussions and explanations rendered, the Committee concurs with and accepts the Auditor-

General’s conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements and the Report on Performance against Pre-determined 
Objectives.

The Committee is of the view that the Annual Financial Statements and the Report on Pre-determined Objectives read with the 
report of the Auditor-General be accepted. 

Unresolved matters

The Committee were assured, during discussions with the Auditor-General, that there were no unresolved matters outstanding 
from the audit process.

Mr. Jeff R. Rapoo
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
31 July 2015
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament
on the Energy and Water Sector Education 
Training Authority

Report on the financial statements

Introduction

1.  I have audited the financial statements of the Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority (EWSETA) 
set out on pages 89 to 133, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of 
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget 
information with  actual information for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

2.  The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of these financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of General Recognised Accounting Practice 
(SA standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 
of 1999) (PFMA) and the Skills Development Act 1998 of South Africa (Act no. 97 of 1998) (SDA), and for such internal 
control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

3.  My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

4.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

6.  In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the EWSETA as at 
31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA Standards 
of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA and SDA.
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Emphasis of matters

7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters:

SETA-Relicensing 

8.  As disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, the Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 
(EWSETA) license expires on 31 March 2016. As at the date of this report the Minister of Higher Education has not made 
a pronouncement on renewal of the SETA licences beyond 31 March 2016. 

Going Concern

9.  As disclosed in note 35 to the annual financial statements, the EWSETA had committed funds that exceeded its reserves. 
The EWSETA is dependent on receiving continued funding form DHET in order to meet its future commitments. 

Restatement of corresponding figures

10.  As disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2014 have been restated as 
a result of an error discovered during the financial year ended 31 March 2015 in the financial statements of the EWSETA 
at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2014.

Significant uncertainties

11.  As disclosed in note 25 to the annual financial statements EWSETA has an unclaimed amount of R1 236 000 from 
the National Skills Fund. This amount will only be paid over when all the verification processes required to validate the 
expenditure have been conducted by the National Skills Fund.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12.  In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general notice issued in 
terms thereof. I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against pre-determined 
objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation and 
internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but 
not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on 
these matters.

Pre-determined objectives

13.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 
for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the year ended 
31 March 2015

• Programme: Quality Assurance and Compliance on page 49 to 50
• Programme: Skills Delivery on page 51 to 56
• Programme: Discretionary Projects on pages 56 to 57

14.  I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.
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15.  I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance 
with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with 
the planned programmes. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, 
verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing 
programme performance information (FMPPI).

16.  I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and 
complete.

17.  The material findings in respect of the selected programmes are as follows:

Programme: Quality Assurance and Compliance

Usefulness of reported performance information

Measurability of indicators and targets
18.  Performance indicators should be well defined by having clear definitions so that data can be collected consistently and 

is easy to understand and use, as required by the FMPPI. A total of 100% of the indicators were not well defined.

19.  Performance targets should be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance as required by 
the FMPPI. A total of 44% of the targets were not specific.

20.  Performance targets should be measurable as required by the FMPPI. We could not measure the required performance 
for 44% of the targets due to them not being specific.

Programme: Skills Delivery

Usefulness of reported performance information

Consistency of indicators and targets 
21.  Treasury Regulation 30.1.3(g) requires the annual performance plan to form the basis for the annual report, therefore 

requiring consistency of objectives, indicators and targets between planning and reporting documents. A total of 20% of 
the reported indicators and 27% of targets were not consistent with those in the approved annual performance plan. 

Measurability of indicators and targets
22.  Performance indicators and targets should be well defined by having clear definitions so that data can be collected 

consistently and is easy to understand and use, as required by the FMPPI. A total of 100% of the indicators were not well 
defined.

Programme: Discretionary Projects

Usefulness of reported performance information

Consistency of objectives, indicators and targets 
23.  Treasury Regulation 30.1.3(g) requires the annual performance plan to form the basis for the annual report, therefore 

requiring consistency of objectives, indicators and targets between planning and reporting documents. A total of 50% 
of the reported strategic objectives, 18% of indicators and 9% of targets were not consistent with those in the approved 
annual performance plan this was due to a lack of review by management.
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Measurability of indicators and targets
24.  Performance indicators should be well defined by having clear definitions so that data can be collected consistently and 

is easy to understand and use, as required by the FMPPI. A total of 45% indicators are not well defined.

25.  Performance targets should be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance as required by 
the FMPPI. A total of 45%of the targets are not specific.

26.  Performance targets should be measurable as required by the FMPPI. We could not measure the required performance 
for 45% of the targets.

27.  This was due to a lack of review of performance information to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and 
guidance.

Additional matters

28. I draw attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets
29.  Refer to the annual performance report on [page(s) x to x; x to x for information on the achievement of planned targets 

for the year. This information should be considered in the context of material findings on usefulness of the reported 
performance information in paragraphs 18-28 of this report.

Adjustment of material misstatements
30.  We identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing on the reported performance 

information of Programme: Skills Delivery. As management subsequently corrected some of the misstatements, we 
raised material findings on the usefulness of the reported performance information.

 

Compliance with legislation

31.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations 
regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance 
with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Expenditure Management

32.  The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure and losses resulting from criminal 
conduct, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act.

33.  The entity exceeded its administration expenditure of 10.5% of the total levies received without approval of the minister 
of Higher Education and Training as required by section 2(1) of the skills development grant regulations.

Procurement and contract management

34.  Contracts and quotations were awarded to suppliers whose tax matters had not been declared by the South African 
Revenue Services to be in order as required by Treasury Regulations 16A9.1(d) and the Preferential Procurement 
Regulations.
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Annual financial statements

35.  The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting 
framework and supported by full and proper records as required by section 55(1) (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of 
discretionary grant expenditure, project expenditure and commitments and irregular expenditure were identified by the auditors 
in the submitted financial statements which were subsequently corrected and the supporting records were provided which 
resulted in the financial statements receiving  an unqualified opinion.

Internal control

36.  I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and compliance with 
legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in, the findings on 
the annual performance report and the findings on non-compliance with legislation included in this report.

Leadership

37.  The EWSETA leadership is required to improve on oversight regarding information that gets submitted for preparation of Annual 
Financial Statements and performance reporting. Further oversight by leadership is required regarding implementing internal 
controls to ensure compliance with laws and regulations.

Financial and performance management

38.  Management did not always implement and monitor preventative and detective controls to ensure completeness and accuracy 
of Annual Financial Statements, performance reporting and compliance with laws and regulations throughout the year. 

Other reports

Investigations

39.  An independent consulting firm is performing an investigation at the request of the entity, which commenced on 
24 November 2014. The investigation was initiated based on an allegation of the possible misappropriation of the entity’s 
assets. The outcome of the investigation is expected during the 2015/16 financial year.

Auditor-General 
Pretoria 
31 July 2015
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General Information 

Country of incorporation and 
domicile

South Africa

Registered office Sentinel House (2nd and 3rd Floor),
Sunnyside Office Park,
32 Princess of Wales Terrace,
Parktown, Johannesburg

Business address Sentinel House (2nd and 3rd Floor),
Sunnyside Office Park,
32 Princess of Wales Terrace,
Parktown, Johannesburg

Postal address PO Box 1273,
Houghton,
2041

Bankers First National Bank Limited, Rand Merchant Bank Limited, Standard Bank of South 
Africa Limited

Auditors Auditor-General of South Africa
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Accounting Authority’s Responsibilities
and Approval 

The members are required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records 
and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included 
in this report. It is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of 
affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. 
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements and were given 
unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the 
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the members to meet these 
responsibilities, the accounting authority sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost 
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective 
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored 
throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entityís business 
is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity 
is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be 
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical 
behaviour are applied and managed within pre-determined procedures and constraints.

The members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal 
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial 
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against 
material misstatement or deficit.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 89 to 133, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the Accounting Authority and were signed on its behalf by:

Mr Olebogeng Besnaar
Accounting Authority Chairperson (Interim)



87

EWSETA ANNUAL REPORT    2014/15

Accounting Authority’s Report

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2015.

1. Review of activities

Main business and operations

The Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority (EWSETA) is a Public Entity listed in Schedule 3A of the Public Finance 
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) and is established in terms of the Skills Development Act, 97 of 1998. The EWSETA operates under 
executive authority of the Minister for Higher Education and Training.

The operating results and state of affairs of the entity are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and do not in our opinion 
require any further comment.

2. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent 
obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

3. Subsequent events

The members are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year that would require adjustment to 
the annual financial statements.

4. Corporate governance

General

The Accounting Authority is committed to business integrity, transparency and professionalism in all its activities. As part of this 
commitment, the Accounting Authority supports the highest standards of corporate governance and the ongoing development of best 
practice.

The entity confirms and acknowledges its responsibility to compliance with the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct (“the Code”) 
laid out in the King III Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2009. The Accounting Authority discusses the responsibilities 
of management in this respect, at Accounting Authority meetings and monitor the entity’s compliance with the code on a three monthly 
basis.

The salient features of the entity’s adoption of the Code is outlined below:

Accounting Authority

The Accounting Authority:
• retains full control over the entity, its plans and strategy;
• acknowledges its responsibilities as to strategy, compliance with internal policies, external laws and regulations, effective risk 

management and performance measurement, transparency and effective communication both internally and externally by the 
entity;

• is of a unitary structure comprising:
-     non-executive members, all of whom are independent members as defined in the Code; and
-     executive members.
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Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

The Acting Chairperson is a non-executive and independent member (as defined by the Code).

The roles of Acting Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer are separate, with responsibilities divided between them, so that no individual 
has unfettered powers of discretion.

Remuneration

The remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer is legislated in terms of The Government Gazette No.34720 dated 04 November 
2011. The Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Operating Officer and Corperate Services Executive’s remuneration are determined by the 
Accounting Authority.

Executive meetings

The accounting authority has met on 4 separate occasions during the financial year. The accounting authority schedules to meet at 
least 4 times per annum.

Members of 
the 

Accounting 
Authority

Designation Appointment 
Meetings 
Attended 

Changes

S Zokwana Chairperson Ministerial Appointee 0 out of 4 Resigned, 31 July 2014

T Phadu Member Ministerial Appointee 1 out of 4

O Besnaar Member Ministerial Appointee 4 out of 4

R Moodley Member Organised Business 3 out of 4

M Mbambisa Member Organised Business 0 out of 4

J Sera Member Organised Labour 4 out of 4

M Sekano Member Organised Labour 4 out of 4

K Swanepoel Member Organised Labour 4 out of 4

B Mogadime Member Organised Business 0 out of 4 Resigned, 13 August 2014

A Botha Member Organised Business 1 out of 4 Resigned, 20 October 2014

K Msebenzi Member Organised Business 3 out of 4

P Ramunenyiwa Member Organised Business 4 out of 4

S Nhlapo Member Organised Labour 4 out of 4

S Montoedi Member Organised Labour 2 out of 4

Audit and risk committee 

For the current financial year the chairperson of the audit committee was Mr JR Rapoo (Independent member). The committee met 7 
times during the financial year to review matters necessary to fulfil its role. 

Internal audit

The entity has outsourced its internal audit function to Business Innovations Group. Internal audit is in compliance with the Public 
Finance Management Act, 1of 1999.
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2015

Restated 
2014

Note(s) R ‘000 R ‘000

Assets
Current Assets
Receivables from exchange transactions 3 32,480 2,530
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 10,948 151
Cash and cash equivalents 5 366,964 401,060

410,392 403,741

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 24,042 1,781
Intangible assets 7 64 112
Intangible assets under development 8 4,654 3,889

28,760 5,782
Total Assets 439,152 409,523

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability 9 397 516
Payables from exchange transactions 10 9,667 7,244
Payables from non-exchange transactions 11 61,552 52,241
Provisions 12 3,118 2,071

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables from non-exchange transactions - 9,914
Total Liabilities 74,734 71,986

Net Assets 364,418 337,537

Administration grant reserve 28,760 5,782
Mandatory grant reserve 71 34
Discretionary grant reserve 335,587 331,721

Total Net Assets 364,418 337,537

Statement of Financial Position 
for the year ended 31 March 2015
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Statement of Financial Performance 
for the year ended 31 March 2015

 
2015

Restated 
2014

Note(s) R ‘000 R ‘000

Non-exchange revenue 13 234,738 210,490
Exchange revenue 14 42 44
Investment revenue 15 18,273 15,537

Total revenue 253,053 226,071

Employer grant and project expenses 16 (169,254) (120,287)
Administration expenses 17 (27,928) (22,936)
Employee related costs 18 (27,617) (21,107)
Depreciation and amortisation 19 (348) (274)
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities - (3)
Finance costs 20 (1,025) (805)

Surplus for the period 26,881 60,659
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Administration 
reserve

Mandatory 
grant reserve

Discretionary 
grant reserve

Accumulated 
surplus

Total net 
assets

R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000

Balance at 01 April 2013 535 1,209 275,134 - 276,878
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year - - - 60,659 60,659
Allocation of unappropriated surplus/(defi-
cit) (refer note 21) (17,878) 51,500 27,037 (60,659) -
Excess funds transferred (to)/from discre-
tionary grant reserve 23,125 (52,675) 29,550 - -

Total changes 5,247 (1,175) 56,587 - 60,659

Balance at 01 April 2014 5,782 34 331,721 - 337,537
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year - - - 26,881 26,881
Allocation of unappropriated surplus/(defi-
cit) (refer note 21) (24,943) 11,418 40,406 (26,881) -
Excess funds transferred (to)/from discre-
tionary grant reserve 47,921 (11,381) (36,540) - -

Total changes 22,978 37 3,866 - 26,881

Balance at 31 March 2015 28,760 71 335,587 - 364,418
 
The administration reserve is a reserve for the carrying  value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
 
The mandatory grant reserve is a reserve for newly registered companies participating after the legislative cut-off date.
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2015

Restated 
2014

Note(s) R '000 R '000

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts
Non-exchange revenue 234,638 210,421
Exchange revenue 32 24
Interest income 18,347 15,153

253,017 225,598

Payments
Employee related costs (26,604) (19,474)
Employer grant and project expenses (184,098) (106,687)
Administration expenses (53,084) (22,584)

(263,786) (148,745)

Net cash flows from operating activities 22 (10,769) 76,853

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6 (22,562) (1,523)
Purchase of intangible assets 7 - (112)
Payments for assets under development (765) (3,889)

Net cash flows utilised in investing activities (23,327) (5,524)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (34,096) 71,329
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 401,060 329,731

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 366,964 401,060

Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31 March 2015
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Approved 
budget Adjustments Final Budget

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis

Difference 
between final 

budget and 
actual

Refer to Note 
37

R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income - - - 42 42
Interest received -
investment 7,025 - 7,025 18,273 11,248 a

Total revenue from 
exchange transactions 7,025 - 7,025 18,315 11,290

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government levies 3,912 (1,790) 2,122 - (2,122)
Skills development levy 
income 232,442 - 232,442 228,834 (3,608) b
Interest and penalties 
income - - - 3,328 3,328

Total revenue from 
non-exchange 
transactions 236,354 (1,790) 234,564 232,162 (2,402)

Total revenue 243,379 (1,790) 241,589 250,477 8,888

Expenditure
Personnel (25,000) - (25,000) (27,617) (2,617) c
Depreciation and 
amortisation - - - (348) (348)
Finance costs - - - (1,025) (1,025) d
Lease rentals on operating 
lease (3,379) - (3,379) (3,491) (112) e
Repairs and maintenance (90) - (90) (116) (26)
General expenses (17,732) (2,350) (20,082) (24,322) (4,240) f
Discretionary grant expenses (176,048) 3,846 (172,202) (124,352) 47,850 g
Mandatory grant expenses (18,451) - (18,451) (44,901) (26,450) h

Total expenditure (240,700) 1,496 (239,204) (226,172) 13,032

Operating surplus 2,679 (294) 2,385 24,305 21,920

Actual Amount on 
Comparable Basis as 
Presented in the Budget 
and Actual Comparative 
Statement (2,679) 294 (2,385) (24,305) (21,920)

   

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
for the year ended 31 March 2015
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1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 
  
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board in 
accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical 
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard 
of GRAP. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual 
financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application 
of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may 
be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
All classes of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assetís expected useful life to their 
estimated residual value. The EWSETA reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of property and equipment at the 
end of each annual reporting period, refer to note 6 for the carrying values of property and equipment. 

EWSETA’s mandate is dependent on the renewal of their operating licence which expires in 2016. Management estimates that 
the licence will be renewed indefinitely and therefore useful lives are not limited to the term of the licence. 

1.2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for administrative purposes, and are expected to 
be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts 
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Accounting Policies
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Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or 
a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the 
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value.

Leasehold improvements should be depreciated over the shorter of the contract period or the assessed useful lives of the 
assets.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Average useful life

Buildings 20 to 30 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 15 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Office equipment 5 to 15 years

Computer software 3 to 8 years

Leasehold improvements shorter of lease period and useful life of asset

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If 
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless 
expectations differ from the previous estimate.

Accounting Policies
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Accounting Policies

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 
asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit 
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.3 Intangible assets
 
An asset is identifiable if it either:
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 

either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do 
so; or

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or 
separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations. 

An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to 

the entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured 
at its fair value as at the dateof acquisition.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it;
• there is an ability to use or sell it;
• it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential;
• there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset; and
• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit 
to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided 
for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may 
be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.
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Accounting Policies

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over 
its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as 
intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life

Computer software 3 years

Website 3 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:
• on disposal; or
• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in surplus 
or deficit when the asset is derecognised.

1.4 Grants and project expenditure 

Mandatory grants 
The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the employer has submitted an application for a grant 
in the prescribed form, within the agreed upon cut-off period and the application has been approved as the payment then 
becomes probable. This grant is equivalent to 20% (2014: 20%) of the total levies paid by the employer.

Discretionary grants & project expenditure
A SETA may determine and allocate out of any surplus funds discretionary grants to employers, education and training 
providers and workers of the employers who have submitted an application for a discretionary grant in the prescribed form 
within the agreed upon cut-off period. The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the application has 
been approved, training has taken place and conditions have been met.

Project expenditure comprises:
• costs that relate directly to the specific contract;
• costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the project; and
• such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the EWSETA under the terms of the contract.

Such costs are allocated using methods that are systematic and rational and are applied consistently to all costs having similar 
characteristics.
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Discretionary grants and project costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. A receivable is 
recognised at the fair value of consideration received or receivable for incentive and other payments made to the extent of 
expenses not yet incurred in terms of the contract.

Retrospective adjustment by SARS
The SETA refunds amounts to the employers in the form of grants, based on the information from SARS. Where SARS 
retrospectively amends the information on levies collected, it may result in grants that have been paid to certain employers 
being in excess of the amounts the SETA is permitted to have granted to employers. A receivable relating to the overpayments 
to the employer in earlier periods is raised as the amount of such grant overpayment, net of bad debts and provision for 
irrecoverable amounts.

1.5 Conditional grants and receipts

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the EWSETA 
has complied with any of the conditions embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the conditions have not been met, a 
liability is recognised.

1.6 Budget information

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in 
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by functional classification linked to performance outcome 
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/04/2014 to 31/03/2015.

The Statement of comparative and actual information has been included in the annual financial statements as the recommended 
disclosure when the annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting as determined by 
National Treasury.

Comparative information is not required.

1.7 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African 
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only 
entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those 
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such 
functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Accounting Policies
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1.8 Reserves

Net assets are sub-classified in the statement of financial position between the following funds and reserves:
• Administration reserve
• Employer grant reserve
• Discretionary grant reserve

This sub-classification is made based on the restrictions placed on the distribution of monies received in accordance with the 
regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998).

Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on investments are utilised for discretionary grants and 
projects. Other income received is utilised in accordance with the original source of the income.

The minimum amount retained in the administration reserve equates to the net book value of non current assets.

Surplus funds in the employer grant reserve are transferred to the discretionary grant reserve at the end of the financial year. 
An amount is retained in the employer grant reserve, after consideration is given to new companies, which in terms of the 
regulations, have six months after joining to submit their workplace skills plan.

1.9 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest 
of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or 
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge 
an obligation.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entityís statement of financial 
position.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group 
of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life 
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of 
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The 
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums 
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be 
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of 
a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual 
term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).
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A financial asset is:
• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to:

-     receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
-      exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to 

the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or 
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed 
of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed 
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:
• the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
• are held for trading.

Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair value].

The entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the entity 
analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. The entity accounts for 
that part of a concessionary loan that is:
• a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, where it 

is the issuer of the loan; or

Accounting Policies



101

EWSETA ANNUAL REPORT    2014/15

• non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes 
and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
• Financial instruments at fair value.
• Financial instruments at amortised cost.
• Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Derecognition

Financial assets
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
• the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
• the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
• the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 

asset, has transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical 
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability 
unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity: 
-   derecognise the asset; and

       -   recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 
received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial liabilities
The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is extinguished 
– i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction are 
accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).

1.10 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

Accounting Policies
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1.11 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
• wages, salaries and long service leave;
• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the 

absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render 
the related employee service;

• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in 
which the employees render the related service; and 

• non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars and 
cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted amount 
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:
• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the 

undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the 
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.  The entity measure the expected 
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present 
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can 
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

1.12 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when:
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the 

obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at 
the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected 
to be required to settle the obligation.
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Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles 
the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not 
exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it 
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle 
the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 25.

1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in 
an increase in net assets.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties 
in an armís length transaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which 
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied 
in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be 
returned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude 
or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity 
either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another 
entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
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Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent 
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of 
revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the 
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. 
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is 
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability 
is recognised as revenue.

Levy income
In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999), registered member companies 
of the Energy Sector Education and Training Authority (EWSETA) pay a skills development levy of 1% of the total payroll cost 
to the South African Revenue Services (SARS). Companies with an annual payroll cost less than R500,000 are exempted in 
accordance with section 4(b) of the SDL Act (1999) as amended, effective 1 August 2005.

Eighty percent (80%) of skills development levies are paid over to the EWSETA (net of the 20% contribution to the National 
Skills Fund).

The skills development levy received is allocated  as follows:
• 10.5% Administration expenses
• 49.5% Discretionary grant expenses
• 20% Mandatory grant expenses

Skills Development Levy (SDL) transfers are recognized when it is probable that future economic benefit will flow to the SETA 
and these benefits can be measured reliably. This occurs when the Department of Higher Education & Training (DHET) either 
makes an allocation or payment, whichever occurs first, to the SETA, as required by Section 8 of the Skills Development Levies 
Act, 1999 (Act No.9 of 1999). The SDL transfer is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable or received.

A receivable/payable is recognised for levies receivable as well as estimated SARS adjustments. An estimate, due to 
retrospective adjustments by SARS, is calculated by comparing the amounts paid by the Employers to SARS and the amounts 
received from DHET. Changes to prior year estimates are accounted for in revenue in the current period. Levies received 
from organisations whose payroll is less than R500,000 per annum are not recognised as income, as in terms of the Skills 
Development Levies Act, these employers should not contribute, therefore amounts contributed by these employers are 
refunded.

The EWSETA refunds amounts to employers in the form of grants, based on information from SARS. Where SARS retrospectively 
amends the information on levies collected, it may result in grants that have been paid to certain employers being in excess of 
the amount the EWSETA is permitted to have granted to employers. A receivable relating to the overpayment to the employer in 
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earlier periods is raised at the amount of such grant over payment, at the fair value of the consideration receivable or received.
Revenue is adjusted for inter SETA transfers due to employers changing SETAs. Such adjustments are separately disclosed 
as InterSETA transfers. The amount of the interest adjustment is calculated according to the Standard Operating Procedure 
issued by DHET.

When a new employer is transferred to the EWSETA, the levies transferred by the former SETA are recognised as revenue and 
allocated to the respective category to maintain its original identity.

Interest and penalties
Interest and penalties on the skills development levy is recognised when it accrues to the entity, when the DHET makes an 
allocation or when a payment is received  whichever occurs first.

1.15 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.16 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.17 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable 
care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.18 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including: 
(a)    this Act; or
(b)    National Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA; or any regulation issued in terms of the PFMA
(c)     any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires 
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end 
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In 
such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being 
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of 
updating the note to the financial statements.
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Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the 
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for 
the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. 
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the 
accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note 
to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure 
has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant 
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the 
irregular expenditure register.

No standards and interpretations became effective in the current year for adoption, therefore the entity has not adopted new 
standards and interpretations in the year under review.
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2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the 
entityís accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2015 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation:
Effective date: 

Years beginning 
on or after

Expected impact:

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 01 April 2015 Unlikely to have material impact.

GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between 
entities under common control

01 April 2015 Unlikely to have material impact.

GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between 
entities not under common control

01 April 2015 Unlikely to have material impact.

GRAP 107: Mergers 01 April 2015 Unlikely to have material impact.

GRAP 20: Related parties 01 April 2016 Unlikely to have material impact.

IGRAP 11: Consolidation ñ Special purpose 
entities

01 April 2015 Unlikely to have material impact.

IGRAP 12: Jointly controlled entities ñ 
Non-monetary contributions by ventures

01 April 2015 Unlikely to have material impact.

GRAP 6 (as revised 2010): Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements

01 April 2015 Unlikely to have material impact.

GRAP 7 (as revised 2010): Investments in 
Associates

01 April 2015 Unlikely to have material impact.

GRAP 8 (as revised 2010): Interests in Joint 
Ventures

01 April 2015 Unlikely to have material impact.

GRAP32: Service Concession Arrangements: 
Grantor

01 April 2016 Unlikely to have material impact.

GRAP108: Statutory Receivables 01 April 2016 Unlikely to have material impact.

IGRAP17: Service Concession Arrangements 
where a Grantor Controls a Significant Residual 
Interest in an Asset

01 April 2016 Unlikely to have material impact.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
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3. Receivables from exchange transactions

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Trade receivables 775 608
Deposits 235 260
Investment interest receivable 1,433 1,507
Staff debtors 1,013 132
Prepaid expenses 29,024 23

32,480 2,530

Included in Prepaid expenses is the amount of R26,151,600 relating to the refurbishment of a new building acquired by the 
SETA.

4. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Inter SETA debtors 258 151
Prepaid expenses 10,690 -

10,948 151

5. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Bank balances 281,868 316,147
Short-term investments/instruments 85,096 84,913

366,964 401,060

Cash and cash equivalents consist of current account bank balances and short term investments with Rand Merchant Bank 
Limited.
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for the year ended 31 March 2015

6. Property, plant and equipment

2015 Restated 2014
Cost / 

Valuation
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Buildings 21,660 - 21,660 - - -
Furniture and fixtures 1,339 (566) 773 980 (526) 454
Motor vehicles 283 (68) 215 283 (31) 252
Office equipment 182 (51) 131 109 (43) 66
Computer equipment 1,291 (450) 841 906 (347) 559
Leasehold improvements 619 (197) 422 533 (83) 450

Total 25,374 (1,332) 24,042 2,811 (1,030) 1,781

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015

Opening 
balance Additions Depreciation Total

Buildings - 21,660 - 21,660
Furniture and fixtures 454 359 (40) 773
Motor vehicles 252 - (37) 215
Office equipment 66 73 (8) 131
Computer equipment 559 384 (102) 841
Leasehold improvements 450 86 (114) 422

1,781 22,562 (301) 24,042

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Furniture and fixtures 122 379 - (47) 454
Motor vehicles - 283 - (31) 252
Office equipment 62 18 - (14) 66
Computer equipment 266 372 (3) (76) 559
Leasehold improvements 41 471 - (62) 450

491 1,523 (3) (230) 1,781
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Other information

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Property, plant  and equipment fully 
depreciated and still in use (Gross 
carrying amount)
Furniture and fixtures 402 402
Computer equipment 172 161
Office equipment 11 3

585 566

No assets have been pledged as security or collateral for any liability. 

The useful life of certain property, plant and equipment categories has been revised in the current period by management. The 
effect of this revision has decreased the depreciation charges for the current and future periods. 

EWSETA has purchased the Cape House on 15 Mc Claren Street, Marshalls Town, Johannesburg for R21,660,000. The 
building is currently under renovation and is not yet available for occupation thus depreciation has not commenced.

7. Intangible assets

2015 Restated 2014
Cost / 

Valuation
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Computer software 173 (109) 64 1,398 (1,287) 111
Website - - - 28 (27) 1

Total 173 (109) 64 1,426 (1,314) 112

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015

Opening 
balance Amortisation Total

Computer software 111 (47) 64
Website 1 (1) -

112 (48) 64
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Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014

Opening 
balance Additions Amortisation Total

Computer software 43 112 (44) 111
Website 1 - - 1

44 112 (44) 112

The cost and accumulated depreciation of intangible assets no longer in use has been derecognised in the current year.

8. Intangible assets under development

2015 2014
R '000 R '000

Management Information System 4,654 3,766
Website development - 123

4,654 3,889

The EWSETA commissioned a project for the development of a new Management Information System to be used for the 
management of grants.  As at 31 March 2015 the system was not yet available for use.

9. Operating lease liability

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Operating lease accrual 397 516

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
Within one year 3,405 2,976
Within 2 - 5 years 640 3,296

4,045 6,272

The operating lease liability relates to the lease of office equipment and accommodation. The lease amounts payable escalate 
at between 9% and 15% per annum.
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10. Payables from exchange transactions 

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Trade payables 3,190 2,175
Payroll accruals 79 1,039
Accrued expenses 2,034 1,408
Sundry payables 4,364 2,622

9,667 7,244

11. Payables from non-exchange transactions

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Current liabilities
Inter SETA payables 66 59
National Skills fund-FET Infrastructure Development Liability 9,914 11,876
Skills development grants payable - mandatory 8,339 8,167
Skills development grants payable - discretionary 43,233 32,139

61,552 52,241

Non-current liability
National Skills fund-FET Infrastructure Development Liability - 9,914

In terms of the Skills Development Circular No. 8/2013  SETAs are to contribute 4.8% of the estimated Discretionary grant 
to the FET  College infrastructure  development.  The DHET has requested EWSETA to make a contribution of R23,221,381.

The EWSETA opted to make this contribution over the next 2 financial years in quarterly instalments commencing in the 
2014/15 financial year.  

The amount recognised in the prior year of R 21,789,807 represents the discounted value of the present obligation taking into 
account an interest rate of 6.5% which is the government bond rate as at 29 August 2013.
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12. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2015

Opening 
Balance Additions

Utilised 
during the 

year Total

Provision for employer refund 802 113 - 915
Provision for leave 1,269 1,063 (129) 2,203

2,071 1,176 (129) 3,118

Reconciliation of provisions - 2014

Opening 
Balance Additions

Utilised dur-
ing the year

Reversed 
during the 

year Total

Provision for employer refund 3,724 99 - (3,021) 802
Provision for leave 678 865 (274) - 1,269

4,402 964 (274) (3,021) 2,071

The provision relates to levies contributed by employers whose payroll is less than R500,000 (below threshold) per year.

As per National Treasury Circular no 9/2013, the SETA can absorb to discretionary reserve any amount that is due to the below 
threshold employers which is older than five years.
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13. Non-exchange revenue

Skills development levy income

The total levy income received per the Statement of Financial Performance is as follows:

Administration

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Levies received from SARS 30,030 26,384
Government levies received 859 -
Interseta transfers In 20 15
Interseta transfers Out (1) (1)

30,908 26,398

Employer Grants
Levies received from SARS 56,284 61,455
Interseta transfers In 37 25
Interseta transfers Out (2) (1)

56,319 61,479

Discretionary Grants
Levies received from SARS 142,378 118,517
Government levies received 1,717 -
Interseta transfers In 92 73
Interseta Transfers Out (4) (3)

144,183 118,587

Total skills development income 231,410 206,464

Interest and penalties income received from SARS

Penalties 2,627 3,429
Interest 701 597

3,328 4,026

Total non-exchange revenue 234,738 210,490

The Government levies received represent the skills development levies received from the Department of Energy (DoE) and Department 
of Water and Sanitation(‘DWS) the levies may be used for administration and Discretionary expenses in accordance with Skills 
Development Regulations.
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14. Exchange revenue

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Other income 42 44

Other income relates to verification income and expense recoveries.

15. Investment revenue

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Interest revenue
Bank 16,840 14,030
Interest receivable 1,433 1,507

18,273 15,537

Interest revenue is earned from short-term investments and the positive bank balances on the entity’s current accounts. 
Interest was earned on both the short term investments and positive bank balances at a rate of between 4.75% and 5.25% 
through-out the year.
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16. Employer grant and project expenses

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Mandatory grants
Disbursed 44,729 8,447
Movement in provision and accruals 172 1,532

44,901 9,979

Discretionary grants
Disbursed 62,191 78,414
Movement in provision and accruals 27,235 7,016
Project Administration Expenses 4,148 1,488
NSF-FET infrastructure development - 20,985

93,574 107,903

Special projects
Disbursed 30,778 2,405

Total employer grant and project expenses 169,253 120,287
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17. Administrative expenditure

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Accommodation 263 984
Advertising 868 582
Auditors remuneration 2,299 2,179
Bank charges 48 49
Computer expenses 2,678 1,855
Consulting and professional fees 6,205 2,259
Document storage 236 124
Entertainment 155 98
Fines and penalties 152 71
Flowers 7 25
Governance committee fees 633 395
Insurance 145 135
Internal audit fees 637 986
Legal expenses 2,233 2,612
Licence fees 179 61
Marketing and communication 1,012 908
Meeting expenses 65 38
Operating lease rentals: Equipment 235 393
Operating lease rentals: Premises 3,256 3,306
Membership fees 5 -
Postage and courier 153 14
Printing and stationery 1,077 1,198
QCTO expenses 656 295
Repairs and maintenance 116 93
Small assets written off 159 170
Staff recruitment costs 76 403
Staff training and development 173 105
Staff welfare 441 346
Subscriptions and membership fees 13 14
Telephone and fax 821 515
Travel 1,055 1,001
Water and electricity 589 615
Workshop expenses 1,288 1,107

27,928 22,936
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18. Employee related costs

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Salary and wages 24,553 18,776
Medical aid - company contributions 195 137
Unemployment insurance fund 87 70
Skills development levy 204 155
Long service award - 10
Leave payments 1,063 795
Provident fund 1,515 1,164

27,617 21,107

19. Depreciation and amortisation

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Property, plant and equipment 301 230
Intangible assets 47 44

348 274

20. Finance costs

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Interest on NSF infrastructure funding 1,025 805

The amount recognised represents the discounted value of the present obligation of the NSF-FET infrastucture development 
taking into account interest rate of 6.5% which is the government bond rate as at 29 August 2013.The interest is implict as 
settlement of the liability will be made over two years. 

Other interest paid relates to the late payment of leave entitlement towards a former employee.
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21. Accumulated surplus

Allocation of net surplus for the year to reserves 2015

Administration 
Reserve

Mandatory 
Grant Reserve

Discretionary Grants Reserve Total per 
Statement 

of Financial 
Performance

Discretionary 
Grants

Special 
projects

Total 
Discretionary

Revenue
Skills development levy: 
income 30,049 56,319 142,466 - 142,466 228,834
Government levies 859 - 1,717 - 1,717 2,576
Penalties and interest - - 3,328 - 3,328 3,328
Investment income - - 18,273 - 18,273 18,273
Other income 42 - - - - 42

Total revenue 30,950 56,319 165,784 - 165,784 253,053

Expenses
Administration costs:
-     Administration 

expenses (27,928) - - - - (27,928)
-     Employee costs (27,617) - - - - (27,617)
-     Depreciation and 

amortisation (348) - - - - (348)
Employer grants and 
project expenses - (44,901) (93,575) (30,778) (124,353) (169,254)
Finance costs - - (1,025) - (1,025) (1,025)

Total expenses (55,893) (44,901) (94,600) (30,778) (125,378) (226,172)

(24,943) 11,418 71,184 (30,778) 40,406 26,881
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Allocation of net surplus for the year to reserves 2014

Administration 
Reserve

Mandatory 
Grant Reserve

Discretionary Grants Reserve Total per 
Statement 

of Financial 
Performance

Discretionary 
Grants

Special 
projects

Total 
Discretionary

Revenue
Skills development levy: 
Income 26,398 61,479 118,587 - 118,587 206,464
Penalties and interest - - 4,026 - 4,026 4,026
Investment income - - 15,537 - 15,537 15,537
Other income 44 - - - - 44
Total revenue 26,442 61,479 138,150 - 138,150 226,071

Expenses
Administration cost:
-     Administration  

expenses (22,936) - - - - (22,936)
-     Employee costs (21,107) - - - - (21,107)
-     Depreciation and 

amortisation (274) - - - - (274)
-     Loss on disposal of 

asset (3) - - - - (3)
Employer grants and 
project expenses - (9,979) (107,903) (2,405) (110,308) (120,287)
Finance costs - - (805) - (805) (805)

(44,320) (9,979) (108,708) (2,405) (111,113) (165,412)
(17,878) 51,500 29,442 (2,405) 27,037 60,659
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22. Cash (used in) generated from operations

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Surplus 26,881 60,659
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 348 274
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities - 3
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals (119) 133
Movements in provisions 1,047 (2,331)
Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions (29,950) (865)
Receivables from non-exchange transactions (10,797) 193
Payables from exchange transactions 2,423 2,741
Payables from non-exchange transactions (602) 16,046

(10,769) 76,853
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23. Financial instruments disclosure

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

2015
At fair value

At amortised 
cost Total

Receivable from exchange transactions - 32,480 32,480
Receivable from non exchange transactions - 10,948 10,948
Cash and cash equivalents 366,964 - 366,964

366,964 43,428 410,392

Financial liabilities

2015 At amortised 
cost Total

Operating lease liability 397 397
Payables from exchange transactions 9,667 9,667
Payables from non-exchange transactions 61,552 61,552
Provisions 3,118 3,118

74,734 74,734

Financial assets

2014
At fair value

At amortised 
cost Total

Receivables from exchange transactions - 2,530 2,530
Receivables from non-exchange transactions - 151 151
Cash and cash equivalents 401,060 - 401,060

401,060 2,681 403,741

Financial liabilities

2014 At amortised 
cost Total

Operating lease liability 516 516
Payables from exchange transactions 7,244 7,244
Payables from non-exchange transactions 52,241 52,241
Provisions 2,071 2,071

62,072 62,072
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24. Commitments

Discretionary reserve

Closing 
Balance 

2013/2014 
R'000

Adjustment 
R'000

Revised 
closing 

balance 
2013/2014 

balance 
R'000

Approved 
2014/2015 

R'000

Utilised 
2014/2015 

R'000

Closing 
balance 

2014/2015 
R'000

Learnerships 82,265 (357) 81,908 58,915 (37,247) 103,576
Apprenticeships 20,815 (180) 20,635 14,214 (3,180) 31,669
AET 2,510 - 2,510 - - 2,510
Bursaries 21,400 - 21,400 600 (2,116) 19,884
Internship 25,681 540 26,221 - (2,880) 23,341
New Venture 37,328 - 37,328 200 (13,204) 24,324
Skills Programme 122,166 - 122,166 25,576 (45,298) 102,444
Special Projects 64,961 4,745 69,706 4,187 (30,778) 43,115

377,126 4,748 381,874 103,692 (134,703) 350,863

Adjustments to commitments are mainly as a result projects that were removed from the list in prior year as there had not 
been implementation on claims received from beneficiaries. As a result of beneficiaries coming forth with signed SLA’s that are 
enforceable, these have been re-instated. 

Other projects have been reassed and reclassified between the different project types.
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25. Contingencies

Contingency for discretionary grants

2014 
R'000

Learnerships 727

The above discretionary grant beneficiary has taken the EWSETA to the public protector for alleged unfair withdrawal of a 
learnership project.

Legal matters

Amount 
 R'000

Probability of 
success

Service provider 1
A Discreationary Grant Project beneficiary instituted a claim for unpaid Discretionary grant 
in the Pietermaritsburg High Court  in January 2010 and the matter was heard on the 02 
April 2013 but was postponed by the court. 322 Uncertain

Service provider 2
A service provider has institued a claim against EWSETA for the services alleged to have 
been rendered from December 2011 to December 2012. EWSETA is defending the claim 
on the basis that such services as alleged were not rendered. 204 Uncertain

526

First time employer registrations 
The Skills Development legislation allows an employer registering for the first time, 6 months to submit an application for a 
mandatory grant.

At the reporting date, it is estimated that additional mandatory grant expenditure of R70,584 (2013/2014: R34,392) will be 
payable to such employers. This amount is contingent upon the number of submissions received and approved.

Contingent assets

National Skills Fund
The National Skills Fund co-funded a critical skills project for the unemployed to the value of R17 million and there are 
unclaimed funds by the EWSETA of R1,236,000 (2013/2014: R1,236,000). This amount will be payable to the EWSETA when 
all the verification processes to validate the expenditure have been conducted by the National Skills Fund. The close out of 
verification procedures will be pursued by the Operations Department.
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Mandatory grant recovery
The EWSETA erroneously paid two employers that did not qualify for mandatory grants an amount of R337,000 in the 2010/11 
financial year. The EWSETA has initiated process of recovering these grants, however the probability of recovery remains 
uncertain.

Surplus funds
In terms of the PFMA (1999),as amended, all uncommitted surplus funds as at year-end may be forfeited to the National 
Revenue Fund should an application for retention of surplus funds be denied. We will submit an application to National Treasury 
through DHET for the retention of uncommitted surplus funds. As in the previous year EWSETA expects that National Treasury 
will approve the retention of surplus funds.

26. Related parties

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Related party balances

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable)
DHET 73 74
FOODBEVSETA 5 5
LG SETA 20 (24)
MERSETA (2) (2)
PSETA 55 55
MQA (5) (5)
SERVICES SETA 33 10
W&R SETA (23) (23)
MICT SETA 36 6
CETA 32 -

Related party transactions

Employers transferred to/(from) SETA's
DHET (2) 70
CETA 32 -
MERSETA - (3)
MICTSETA 78 6
LGSETA 44 -
SERVICES SETA 23 2
INSETA - 14
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Levies received from related parties
DOE 372 -
DWS 2,204 -
NNR 661 -
ESKOM 166,978 -
ICMA 165 -
BLOEM WATER 932 -
MAGALIES WATER 749 -
MHLATHUZE WATER 573 -
OVERBERG WATER 97 -
RAND WATER 12,044 -
SEDIBENG WATER 1,445 -
UMGENI WATER 3,249 -
AMATOLA WATER 971 -
LEPELLE NORTHERN WATER 1,184 -

Project expenses paid to related parties
SAQA - 1,785
QCTO 656 -
NSF 12,901 -
GCRA 987 -
EBMTC 1,533 2,089
MEP 2,760 -
TIA 2,205 -
OVERBERG WATER 120 -
BUSHBUCKRIDGE WATER 270 -

Recoveries from related parties
UIF 6,188 -

The EWSETA is controlled by the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) which is under the direction of the 
Minister of Higher Education and Training. The transactions relating to revenue were with the DHET.

The transactions and balances arose due to the movements of funds between the entities that are under the control of the 
DHET.
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27. Key management information

Executive

2015
Salary

Other 
benefits

Performance 
Bonus

Acting 
Allowances Total

Chief Executive Officer 1,435,370 151,846 150,786 - 1,738,002
Acting Chief financial Officer - - - 286,179 286,179
Acting Chief Operating Officer - - - 241,337 241,337
Corporate Services Executive 990,996 103,509 - - 1,094,505

2,426,366 255,355 150,786 527,516 3,360,023

2014
Salary

Other 
benefits

Travel 
allowance

Acting 
Allowances Total

Chief Executive Officer 1,470,535 132,624 - - 1,603,159
Chief Financial Officer 1,182,766 90,151 - - 1,272,917
Chief Operating Officer 1,240,165 127,510 54,000 - 1,421,675
Acting Chief Finance Officer - - - 67,500 67,500

3,893,466 350,285 54,000 67,500 4,365,251

Non-Executive

2015 Accounting 
Authority fee Meeting fee

Travel 
allowance

Total 

Accounting Authority
Members 210,397 179,632 52,368 442,397

Accounting Authority sub-committees
Meeting fee

Travel 
Allowance Total

Audit and risk committee - - -
Chairperson 125,440 3,716 129,156
Members 117,504 2,628 120,132

242,944 6,344 249,288

The EWSETA Accounting Authority consits of 11 members, there are currently 4 vacant positions (including the Chairperson) 
on the board. We are currently waiting for the Minister to appoint the board chairperson. 
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28. Risk management

Financial risk management

The entityís activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow 
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The entityís overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential 
adverse effects on the entityís financial performance. 

The EWSETA has developed a comprehensive risk strategy in order to monitor and control these risks. The risk management process 
relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below:

Liquidity risk

The entityís risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through an 
ongoing review of future commitments. 

Interest rate risk

As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entityís income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of 
changes in market interest rates.

Fair value interest rate risk

Assets

Effective 
interest rate

Floating rate 
amount 

R'000

Non-inter-
est bearing 

amount 
R'000

Interest 
bearing 
amount 

R'000
Total 

R'000

Investments 5.25% 85,096 - - 85,096
Cash at bank 4.75% 281,868 - - 281,868
Loans and receivables -% - 43,428 - 43,428

Total financial assets 366,964 43,428 - 410,392

Liabilities
Loans and payables 6.50% - (61,305) (9,914) (71,213)

- (61,305) (9,914) (71,213)
Total financial liabilities    366,964      (17,877)      (9,914)      339,179   

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors.

The entity only deposits cash with major banks with quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Verification costs are settled in cash.
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29. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 165 150

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure was not condoned or written off by Board for current year.

No disciplinary steps have been taken against the employees for non-compliance of the PFMA.

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Details of incidents
Interest on late payments 35 3
Damages to a hired car 13 -
Traffic fines administration fee - 1
Interest and penalties on late payment of employees tax 117 143
Loss on disposal of assets - 3

165 150

30. Irregular expenditure

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Opening balance 70,570 57,046
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 29,693 40,898
Less: Amounts condoned - (27,374)

100,263 70,570

Details of irregular expenditure ñ current year

Non-compliance with Practice Note 8 3,317 4,907
Non-compliance with skills development grant regulations - 12,701
Excess over 10.5% of administration expenses allocation 26,376 23,290

29,693 40,898
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Details of expenditure awaiting condonation

Non-compliance with Practice Note 8 3,317 9,440
Excess over 10.5% of administration expenses allocation 26,376 -

29,693 9,440

Details of irregular expenditure condoned

Condoned by: 

Salary increases incorrectly applied

The 
Accounting 

Authority - 1,060

Late submissions of WSP

The 
Accounting 

Authority - 16,917
Excess over 10.5% of administration expenses allocation DHET - 9,397

- 27,374

Details of irregular expenditure recoverable (not condoned)

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Non-compliance with Practice Note 8 3,317 25,139
Non-compliance with skills development grant regulations - 12,701
Excess over 10.5% of administration expenses allocation 26,376 23,290

29,693 61,130



131

EWSETA ANNUAL REPORT    2014/15

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2015

31. Losses due to theft and fraud

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Stolen laptops - 3
Losses through bank fraud 987 120

987 123

Criminal charges have been laid with the South African Police Service (SAPS) to investigate the matters above.

32. Change in estimate

Property, plant and equipment

As defined in GRAP 3 a change in an accounting estimate is an adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset or liability, or 
the amount of periodic consumption, resulting from reassessing the present status of, and the expected future benefits and 
obligations associated with the asset or the liability. Changes in accounting estimates result from new information or new 
developments and accordingly are not corrections of errors.

The useful life of certain property, plant and equipment categories has been revised in the current period by management. The 
effect of this revision has decreased the depreciation charges for the current and future periodsby R42,405 thus resulting in a 
lesser charge to accumulated depreciation and increase in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment. 

33. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified.

Short term investments have been presented separately from bank balances.

The effects of the reclassification are as follows:

2015 2014
R '000 R '000

Statement of financial position
Short term investments 3,638 3,455
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34. Prior period errors

During the year under review it was discovered that property, plant and equipment purchased and delivered in the prior year to 
the value of R59,000 was not recorded, resulting in the understament of assets and liabilities.

During the year under review it was discovered that certain discreationary and admnistration expenses were not provided for 
in the 2013/2014 financial year.

As detailed in note 24, the prior period commitments balance has been restated by R5,950,000. The prior period commitment 
balance was restated to reflect the correct commitment balance as at the prior period year-end. This prior period error does 
not impact on the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance and Cash Flow Statement.

The correction of the errors results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position Originaly 
reported 

R'000

Prior period 
correction 

R'000

Restated 
balance 

R'000

Property, plant and equipment 1,722 59 1,781
Payables from non-exchange transactions (51,058) (1,181) (52,239)
Payables from exchange transactions (5,001) (2,244) (7,245)
Administration grant reserve (5,723) (59) (5,782)
Discreationary grant reserve (335,147) 3,425 (331,722)

(395,207) - (395,207)

Statement of Financial Performance Originaly 
reported 

R'000

Prior period 
correction 

R'000

Restated 
amount 

R'000

Employer grant and project expenses (117,616) (2,672) (120,288)
Administration expenses (22,240) (696) (22,936)
Surplus for the period 64,026 (3,367) 60,659

(75,830) (6,735) (82,565)
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35. Going concern 

The Minister of Higher Education and Training has not as yet announced the proposed SETA Landscape and re-licencing of 
SETA’s. The SETA licences expire on 31 March 2016. It is probable that the EWSETA will continue beyond 31 March 2016, and 
as such the Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The total commitments as at the end of the financial year are R350,863,000 which has resulted in EWSETA being over 
committed, the EWSETA is depended on receiving continued funding from the DHET in order to meet its commitments.

36. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

a)   The higher interest earned  is due to funds which were to be allocated to slow moving projects not being disbursed 
which led to higher cash holdings, resulting in the higher interest earned. 

b) The skills development levy income is lower than budgeted due to other employers moving to other SETAs.
c) The higher personnel expenditure is due to absorping of the interns on a contract basis and salary increases.
d) Finance costs is due to the amortisation of NSF Infrastructure funding.
e)  The operating lease expense is higher than budgeted due to additional items that have been leased. 
f)  The general expenses is higher than budgeted due to website costs being expensed and professional expenses     

incurred in relation to the acquisition of the building.
g)  The discretionary grant expenses are lower than budgeted due to slow moving projects
h)   The mandatory grant expenses are higher than budgeted due to ESKOM qualifying for mandatory grant in the 2014/15 

financial year.
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